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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)
BRBAERZAARIB (MBI AIER (T RIRR ] 2558

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A BN

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the
first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has eight beauty and slimming centres with
three in Hong Kong and five in Mainland China including two in
Beijing, two in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen. All these centers
provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty and slimming
services, health management and anti-ageing treatment programs
etc.. Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow
up, all programmes enable customers to achieve their desired skin
quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Body Specialist”,
“Best Label Award — Slimming” by Marie Claire Magazine, “Yahoo!
Emotive Brand Award — Beauty and Fitness Centre Category” by
YAHOO! many times and honor to be the “Caring Company” for
six consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and
with the additions of international famous brands, the growth of
turnover as well as the number of distribution points is impressive.

In June 2010, the Group appointed a consultant to develop the
Group’s franchise co-operation business in Mainland China.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A 3N

In recent years, the Group realized that e-Commerce is flourishing
but the beauty and slimming market is still untapped, the business
potential is unpredictable. Therefore, starting from 2012, the
Group invests in developing an one-stop online booking platform
at www.beautyu.com to pave the way for entering into the
e-Commerce new Era.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and the newly franchise co-operation
business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class
services to our customers.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY # FE B & E
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—2-mF —E-=F 5 % —_T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,362,916 1,141,662 1,039,785 627,537 470,725
(1,189,750) (974,098) (861,630) (536,634) (389,006)
173,166 167,564 178,155 90,903 81,719
19,355 4,686 6,787 1,180 2,171
(85,050) (83,863) (79,062) (67,066) (61,211)
(85,223) (71,829) (69,429) (68,727) (50,957)
22,248 16,558 36,451 (43,710) (28,278)
(3,647) (1,798) (2,008) (1,337) (1,248)
(3,669) 668 (76) (483) 2,858
14,932 15,428 34,367 (45,530) (26,668)
(7,287) (7,870) (7,847) (2,503) (2,154)
7,645 7,558 26,520 (48,033) (28,822)
41,715 42,252 28,290 33,809 27,019
368,899 290,301 255,492 193,553 127,223
(162,776) (162,435) (135,819) (92,829) (75,084)
206,123 127,866 119,673 100,724 52,139
(70,078) (20,837) (5,593) (23,127) (3,380)
177,760 149,281 142,370 111,406 75,778
153,400 125,514 118,988 91,774 55,765
24,360 23,767 23,382 19,632 20,013
177,760 149,281 142,370 111,406 75,778




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HE

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2014 (the “Year Under Review") to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of
directors (the “Board”).

2013 was a year of fluctuations on the international financial
market. The European debt crisis and the gradual retreat of the
quantitative easing policies by the U.S. Federal Reserve clouded
with the trail of global economic recovery with uncertainties.
Overall consumer sentiment went down under an outlook of
instability for the global economy. On the other side of the world,
consumer sentiment plunged sharply in face of serious anti-
corruption actions of the central government, depressing the
beauty and slimming business of the Group in China and Hong
Kong to a certain extent.

Albeit a challenging and difficult operating environment, the
Group successfully achieve a satisfactory growth in its turnover,
which increased from approximately HK$1,141,662,000 of the
previous year to approximately HK$1,362,916,000 for the Year
Under Review, representing an increase of 19.4%. The increase
was mainly attributable to the significant increase in turnover
contribution from Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd.
("Dong Fang”) amounting to approximately HK$1,241,842,000,
representing an increase of 23.1% from approximately
HK$1,008,752,000 of last year. As to gross profit contribution, a
growth of 3.3% to HK$173,166,000 was recorded for the year, as
compared to the gross profit of approximately HK$167,564,000
last year. General and administrative expenses for the year were
approximately HK$85,223,000, up by 18.6% from approximately
HK$71,829,000 of the corresponding period last year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company dropped to approximately
HK$3,221,000 from approximately HK$6,177,000 of the same
period last year, which was mainly attributable to the increased
investment in the PRC market for the opening of new flagships
in Shenzhen and Shanghai by the Group during the Year Under
Review, intensified input in human resources costs, and continued
input of resources in e-commerce. On the other hand, sharp
increases in staff costs and rentals formed another major reason
for the decline in profit for the year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HE

Our new beauty and slimming centre in Sinan Mansion, a prime
spot in Shanghai and our new branded flagship clubhouse in
Shanghai Bund area were opened in September and October
2013, respectively. The grand openings were honoured by the
attendance of numerous including international movie stars,
celebrities, social elites and our long-supporting customers, and
we were flattered by the strong support bestowed upon Sau San
Tong by different walks of the community. As a move to contribute
back to society, the Group took the occasion of the grand opening
of the flagship luxury clubhouse in Shanghai Bund area to hold
a fund-raising charity gala in an effort to help the underprivileged
groups in our community, adding extra meaning to the celebration
of the our flagship opening event.

The commitment, passion and devotion that Sau San Tong
contributes to the beauty industry are essential to our success.
Over the years, we have always committed to making strong
progress in providing quality products, outstanding services and
making contribution to the industry and community in which
it operates. As a result, the Group was honored by numerous
accolades that attest our position in the industry. As a responsible
corporate citizen, Sau San Tong spares no efforts in supporting
different welfare activities and encouraging its employees to
participate in volunteer services to build a harmonious community,
improve the life of the underprivileged, the elderly and children
and to create a better future. Our continuous care and support for
its community was evidenced by the honor of Sau San Tong as a
“Caring Company” for six consecutive years.

The beauty and slimming industry has always been taken as one
of the more traditional industries that thrives on the orthodox
philosophy of providing attentive and high quality service to
its customers. The emergence of the internet has, however,
gradually upheaved this traditional industry in once again digging
into the potential of the industry with the new model of thought
it brings along to enhance the value of industry. In response to
this, the Group continued to invest in the enhancement of its
online business platform, implement the digitalised management
system and promote online marketing of the Group’s brand
image during the Year Under Review. The migration from the
traditional operating model to the new digital age will be not short
of obstacles from acknowledging to learning and from preparation
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HE

to commencement. We will continue to strive our best and gear
up ourselves to embrace the arrival of the imminent new era, with
the aims of introducing new power and elements to the beauty
industry.

Looking ahead into the future, the global macroeconomic
environment will remain on the road of slow recovery riddled
with uncertainties in 2014. In spite of this, the Group remains
meticulously optimistic on the long-term future prospects. We will
continue to closely monitor the economic environmental changes,
sustain meticulous and stringent strategies for different facets
of our business operation, and make appropriate deployment as
needed. Paralleled to these, the Group will further consolidate
its existing advantages in a proactive manner and prepare for
improvements in the consumer market environment in the future.

On behalf of the Board, | hereby would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and business
partners for their valuable contribution and strong support to the
Group under a year of challenges. With our persistent dedication
and unswerving efforts, | am confident that the Group will sustain
stable growth in the future and achieve generous return for all
shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m R o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

Continuing the trend of rebound of the second half of last year,
the Hong Kong economy continued to grow during the first two
quarters of the years, which was followed by a slowdown in the
third quarter. Both private consumption and traveler expenditures
slackened under the deceleration in the People Republic of
China (the “PRC”) economy growth. Market anticipations for the
local economy were further clouded by an unfavourable external
economic environment. In particular, the possible distress on the
US economic performance caused by the temporary government
shutdown in October last year left little room for any encouraging
expectation for the Hong Kong economy which was generally
thought to have lost the momentum for positive surprises in terms
of growth.

The Group records a satisfactory performance in the year ended
31 March 2014 (the “Year Under Review”). A turnover amounting
to approximately HK$1,362,916,000 was recorded, representing
an increase of 19.4% from approximately HK$1,141,662,000 of
the previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to the
remarkable growth in the distribution sales of our Shanghai Dong
Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”). Turnover from Dong
Fang increased by 23.1% to approximately HK$1,241,842,000
during the Year Under Review (2013: approximately
HK$1,008,752,000). The management is confident that the
revenues generated from the distribution business will continue to
grow and bring along stable and sizeable revenue to the Group, as
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J

vast swathes of the Chinese population begin to have increasing
disposable income to spend on high-end products. Heedless of an
unfavorable environment in the industry in which it operates, the
Group has successfully leveraged on its leading market position
and broad-based clientele. Our beauty, slimming and spa centre
in both Hong Kong and in the PRC deliver amiable performance
during the Year Under Review. Turnover generated from all our
beauty, slimming and spa centres amounted to approximately
HK$89,509,000 (2013: approximately HK$96,681,000) comparable
to last year, whereas the franchise cooperation business made a
contribution of HK$30,195,000 to the turnover of the Group (2013:
HK$34,986,000).

Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$173,166,000 for
the Year Under Review, compared to HK$167,564,000 for the
previous year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$3,221,000, compared to HK$6,177,000 of
last year. The decreases were mainly attributable to a receding
performance of the beauty and slimming segment under a shift
of business focus to high-end products and services with a lower
margin but more rosy prospects, as well as a transient setback
in Hong Kong market during the Year Under Review. Besides,
the impact of negative factors included higher sales costs
and appreciation of Renminbi. During the Year Under Review,
administrative expenses amounted to HK$85,223,000 (2013:
approximately HK$71,829,000), the sharp increase of staff costs
and rental is the major reason of the increase of administrative
expenses.
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Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

Impacted by the meagre growth in the Hong
Kong economy, the retail sector showed
retarded growth during the Year Under
Review. Other unfavorable operating factors
such as high rentals and increases in other
costs of sale also persisted. While our

beauty, slimming and spa business in Hong Kong was unavoidably
affected by these factors, it has nevertheless shown relatively
strong resilience against sluggish economy growth. This was
attributable to our excellent service management that enables
greater quality assurance. Our long history of beauty and
slimming service provision in Hong Kong has also gained &
the long-term favour of customers. The combination of
attentive standardisation and sophistication of service i
procedures with effective customer-oriented marketing
measures such as special trial packages has enabled
the provision of competitive products and services that
meet the demand and consumption pattern of its target
customers.

Successful branding is another advantage enjoyed by
the Group. Given that consumers of beauty industry
products and services tend to be brand
loyal and share what works for them with
their peers, we have been combining our
extensive experience in the industry with
a meticulously managed product and
service portfolio that is able to outshine

our counterparts and consolidate the
strong reputation for our cosmetic and skincare products as well
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as beauty and slimming services, gaining strong and
lasting support and faith from its customers.

In an effort to further strengthen its leading market
position in the beauty and slimming industry, the
Group has introduced a number of innovative
beauty, slimming and anti-ageing treatments and
machineries during the Year Under Review. One
of the highlights introduced during the year was
the “Raylife AW” from Germany that intertwines
radiofrequency, acoustic waves and pulsed light.
The application of different technologies at the same
time guarantees better results and the resolution of

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ##85E#ZKRER QA




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m R o

any aesthetic problem from evening of skin tone and anti-ageing
to body sculpting and stimulation of tissue renewal. Another new
introduction was “Cryojet” from Korea that utilises the cool dermal
penetration technology to achieve enhanced penetration of active
ingredients, or slimming effect through targeted destruction of
fat cells. Without using needles and therefore without causing
any pain, it can also be applied in activating the self-protection
mechanism of the skin through stimulating the circulation to the
treatment area for immediate skin rejuvenation.

In the PRC, consumer confidence has been hit for a while by the
sudden closing of business by a renowned beauty and slimming
company near the end of 2013. Nevertheless, the beauty and
slimming industry maintained its strong growth in 2013. The
Chinese beauty and slimming industry is generally speaking at
the beginning of its fully developed phase, benefited by growing
household income and rising awareness of personal appearance
and wellbeing among Chinese consumers. The rise of the new
affluent class and consumers’ uplifting demand in China have
been the main factors to drive the consumption of high quality
beauty and slimming products and services, which were seen
as daily necessities for many and more. During recent years, the
urbanisation process and the sprouting of new business areas
and malls as a result are further accelerating the consumption
power with the tier-two and tier-three cities become the “rising
battlefields” for the industry. The China market is also seeing
growing sophistication, with a highly versatile range of products
and services are available including beauty, body sculpting,
cosmetics, image design, slimming and health management etc.

Market sophistication also favoured
the dominance of the higher end
market by Sau San Tong which
enjoys strong brand recognition
and quality reputation. Our beauty
and slimming centres are situated
in prime locations in the PRC
with convenient customer access
and attractive design and layout
and we pride ourselves in using
the best of professional beauty
technicians and the most up-
to-date modern technologies.
The successive opening of the

our new beauty and slimming
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centre in Sinan Mansion, Shanghai in September 2013 and our
luxury beauty and slimming clubhouse in Shanghai Bund area in
October 2013 marked a new milestone for the Group’s business
development in the PRC. These two new centres are designed
to provide its customers with fanastic experience in a luxury
environment equipped with comprehensive top-notch facilities,
and are expected to further enhancing our market position to
capture the immense opportunities and potentials arising from
the ongoing market sophistication in Mainland China. We believe
that the beauty, slimming and anti-ageing market in China will
continue to be underpinned by strong demand as a larger portion
of the population moves up the economic ladder. Our established
presence and reputation in the PRC market will undoubtedly
facilitate our expansion efforts to generate sustainable growth and

return.

In view of the lack of related expertise in the PRC market, we
have capitalised on our strong team of high caliber professionals,
as well as our wealth of know-hows in the management and
operation of beauty, slimming and spa centres to provide
management consultation services, which proved invaluable to our
customers and continued to enjoy high demand during the Year
Under Review.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Paralleled to the provision of slimming and beauty services,
product distribution is another core business of the Group in
the PRC. Dong Fang is the biggest distributor of P&G products
in East China Area, with a major presence in Jiangsu, Zhejiang
and Shanghai. Over the years, Dong Fang has established

strong reputation in the industry with its high-quality products
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and services in the distribution of a wide range of P&G products
under the brand names of SKIl, Olay, Pantene, Head & Shoulders,
Oral-B, Gillette Men, Vidal Sassoon and a number of other brands
in the Eastern and Western China. Also, Dong Fang is authorised
by P&G as the sole distributor to distribute its world recognised
brands of high-end luxury fragrances, including Gucci, Dolce
& Gabbana, Hugo, BOSS, and Lacoste in the PRC (excluding
departmental store channel). In February 2014, the portfolio of
Dong Fang was further extended to include Wella, Sebastian,
Clairol, and SP.

Health, Beauty and Related Products

Looking to enrich its portfolio of beauty and slimming products and
services and thereby securing its leading position on the market,
the Group invests heavily in the development and introduction of
new and innovative products that cater to the needs and demands
of its customers. During the year, a number of innovative products
have been launched, including Syn-ake Prodna 4D mask that
represses contraction of facial muscles to effectively smooth out
wrinkles, fine lines and expression lines, while preventing the
formation of wrinkles. Another star product for the year was Sau
San Tong Ultra Reshaping Waist Trio that combines massage
oil, waist patch and body lotion for rapid slimming effect through
getting rid of stubborn fat, boosting metabolism and circulation,
effectively alleviating swelling, while at the same time moisturises
the skin around the waist.

e

A R zRedaitE— S MRERTER
- EEHDT - FRBARRSPEREERM

REREBRER

AEBRERENT S 2 REHMU - HNEE
HEBRLERERIRBZES  EmMERR
BERRENSESENR A cER - D4
BEFZAT R -FRELZHAFER 2
REIBEAKREAREGAEER ] - rEa s A
WkE - BRET A KRB EAR
DB 2K - NRERZ A —BHERRES
ERERBMER - BBREH  RELE
EIR=EE NREEIRTERE PG - R
KA RIBER - RS KE - WEaERIFRZ
ERENLE -

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 Z#ZRERA A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m R o

Looking into the year ahead, the Group will continue to launch
new products that feature advanced technologies, innovative and
environmental safety ingredients. We believe that the product
sales segment will continue to make significant contribution to the
Group’s results in the future.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

The Group started to tap in the PRC market in 2004 upon seeing
the vast potential market in the PRC. Apart from setting up
numerous points of sales in the PRC, we have sought to capture
a sizeable market share and establish its brand presence in a
short time through the franchising co-operation model, which
we believed to be the most efficient way. After initial setbacks,
this segment has started to gain a stable foothold in the PRC
market and we are looking forward to further enhancing our
brand presence through continuous expansion of our network of
franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops in the years to
come.

15 new franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops have
been added to our extensive network during the Year Under
Review. As at 31 March 2014, more than 150 franchise co-
operation contracts have been signed.

BeautyU Online Booking Platform

Since its launch in October 2012, BeautyU (www.beautyu.com),
the first online beauty and slimming service booking platform in
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the PRC continued to enjoy big success in soliciting beauty and
slimming service providers to join, and attracting retail customers
to making bookings online in accordance with their own needs.
This website was highly welcomed by customers who dislike
the traditional exhausting hard-selling strategy and prepayment
practice. In leading the way of internet selling in the industry, we
believe the website will bring the beauty and slimming industry to
a new era and prove to be a valuable asset to the Group.

Outlook

Looking back at 2013, the worldwide economy was deeply
shaken by the fiscal cliff in the United States and the gradual exit
of related subsidy policies in China. The much looked forward
to recovery failed to show signs of optimism. But after years of
disappointment, things are looking up in the advanced world and
the global economy is expected to mildly pick up on a better
outlook to stronger recent indicators and increased economic
activities in the US and Eurozone. China, seeing its problems
as already past its worst, is expected to benefit from improved
exports to the developed countries. In view of the
possible economic growth, the Group will strive
for stable growth in the coming year through a
combination of cost control efforts and quality
assurance measures for its services and products.
Expansion initiatives will concentrate on the
direction of diversification with the research and
development of new treatments and products and
development of e-commerce to cater to the needs
of customers from different categories.
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In China, consumers, manufacturers and regulatory authorities
have been alarmed by the safety issues of beauty and slimming
products and services recently. It is believed that the promulgation
of various hygienic standards can help to regulate the behaviour
of beauty and slimming industry players and protect the rights
of consumers. While this is going to exert a heavy blow on the
lower-end institutions causing them to exit from the competition,
it is expected that the resulted higher entry-barrier and elimination
of sub-par operators will benefit the development of high-end
participants such as the Group. Another imminent trend for the
industry is the standardisation of technicians. In view of this,
the Group is actively training its teams of talents to enhance the
provision of consistent service level across different regions.

As the traditional, well-heeled beauty and slimming service
consumers become more experienced and sophisticated, and are
taking a more holistic view of their health, there arises a tilting
of demand towards high-end and customised personal services.
In view of these, the Group will continue to pursue even higher
service standards through persistent innovations and intensive
investments in research and development, and strive to become
the protagonist of the beauty and slimming industry.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group endeavour to provide services and a working
environment that is green and environmental friendly. In terms of
conserve energy, the Group has implemented specific measures
and guidelines on the use of lighting, electronic device, air
conditioning and water.

Charity

In our pursuit for epiphanies of physical beauty, we believe the
beauty of the heart is equally important and spare ourselves no
effort to support charity initiatives. In addition to our regular charity
donations and volunteer initiatives, a charity gala was held at the
opening of our luxury beauty and slimming clubhouse in Shanghai
Bund area in October 2013. All money raised at the event went
directly to charity programs and services.
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2014 were approximately
HK$99,647,000 compared to approximately HK$73,546,000 as
at 31 March 2013. Gearing ratio of the Group was 22.7% (2013:
12.4%), based on total of bank borrowings of approximately
HK$40,291,000 (2013: approximately HK$18,585,000) and the net
assets of approximately HK$177,760,000 (2013: approximately
HK$149,281,000). As at 31 March 2014, liability of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$232,854,000 (2013: approximately
HK$183,272,000), including account payables and other
payables of approximately HK$99,439,000 (2013: approximately
HK$98,300,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of
our subsidiary, Dong Fang, deferred income of approximately
HK$17,671,000 (2013: approximately HK$21,812,000), and bank
borrowings of approximately HK$40,291,000 (2013: approximately
HK$18,585,000) arising mainly from the trading activities of Dong
Fang. The liability is intended to be financed by internal resources
of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a
ratio of current assets over current liabilities was 2.27:1 (2013:
1.79:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.

On 28 March 2014, the completion date of the top-up placing,
the Group successfully raised funds from the subscription in the
amount of approximately HK$22,000,000 before expenses. Fund
raised from the subscription will be used as general working
capital.

Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”) and
an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 6 December 2013, the Company issued a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung
(“Subscription Convertible Note”) on 20 December 2013. The
Subscription Convertible Note is with 2% interest rate per annum
and is due in 3 years from the date of issue and convertible
into ordinary shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.33
per conversion share, subject to adjustments. Up to the date of
this report, the Subscription Convertible Note has not yet been
converted.
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Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and the placing agent and an ordinary resolution passed
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 6 December 2013,
the placing of placing convertible notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 (“Placing Convertible Notes”) were
placed by the Placing Agent and issued to not fewer than six
placees who are independent third parties on 20 December 2013.
The Placing Convertible Notes are with 4% interest rate per annum
and is due in 3 years from the date of issue and convertible into
ordinary Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per
conversion share, subject to adjustments. Up to the date of this
report, the Placing Convertible Notes have not yet been converted.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group
has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial
products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets
As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$177,760,000 compared to approximately

HK$149,281,000 as at 31 March 2013. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group and the Company had
no material contingent liabilities.
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Employee Information

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 527 employees (2013:
506). During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$81,439,000 (2013: approximately
HK$73,354,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2014, there is an aggregate of 15,850,000 outstanding
options to subscribe for 15,850,000 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 4 November
2008.

Future Plan

Going forward, demand for beauty and slimming products and
services in Hong Kong and the PRC will continue to the track of
expansion. In the forthcoming years, the Group will continue to
develop and launch new treatments and products suited to the
needs and preferences of all range of customers.

With the rapid growing population of internet users in China and
the emergence of the country as the world’s second-largest e-tail
market, e-commerce is the inevitable direction of development
for many industries, but only innovative business models that
can facilitate the invincible position will have a prosperous future.
Positioning as more than a replacement channel for purchases
that otherwise would have taken place offline, our tripartite
website BeautyU online platform serves three purposes at one
stop: improving brand visibility for Sau San Tong, promoting
entrepreneurial opportunities for potential partners of beauty and
slimming service providers, and enhancing customer experience
for our retail customers. We believe this unique e-commerce
engine will catalyse a “leapfrog” move, spur incremental
consumption in the new era of the digital economy.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 39, is the Chairman of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the
Company. She is also the chairman of the Company’s nomination
committee. Dr. Cheung founded the Group in 2000, and over
the years, by virtue of her over 16 years’ expertise in beauty and
slimming industry and profound understanding and unique vision
on the market, she can fully capitalize on the trends and changes
in the market and leading the Group successfully developed into
a famous and reputable brand in Greater China. Dr. Cheung
holds an honorary doctorate degree from Armstrong University,
U.S.A. and an Executive Master degree of Business Administration
from Peking University. Dr. Cheung is responsible for the
overall stewardship of the Group which includes directions and
formulating strategies. With her management style and innovative
promotional strategies, she achieved various accomplishments and
leading the Group to a new height. She also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Cheung is the younger
sister of Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director of
the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she has been appointed as a member of the
Beauty Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau
— Qualifications Framework in 2006. In the past, Dr. Cheung was
awarded as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs
in China” by the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”.
She is also one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the
youngest awarded entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has
been awarded as one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is an Honorary Consultant
of The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheung has
founded the Shirley Cheung Charity Foundation, which is granted
as an approved charitable organization. As a Chairman of the
Foundation, she leads the team to serve and feedback to the
community in every minute and every moment.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 41, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development
and administration of the Group. He is also a member of the
Company’s nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a master
degree in business administration from Americus University of the
United States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was
the director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung was previously an executive director of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 64, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Company’s audit committee, a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Mr. Hong is
a practicing solicitor and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has
been practicing as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for
over 35 years and is the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko,
Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in science from University
of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive
director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 55, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is also the
chairman of the Company’s remuneration committee, a member of
the Company’s audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Li
is the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the
Election Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the
Legislative Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman
of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange.
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Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 40, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. She is also a
member of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Ms. Hui is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation of
Institute of Hong Kong. Ms. Hui has over 19 years of experience
in professional auditing, accounting and financial management
related experience from international accounting firm and listed
group.

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP, aged 65, joined the
Group in October 2013 as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
and also as a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of banking experience in Canada and
the Asia Pacific Region. She was Senior Vice President at the
Republic National Bank of New York for almost thirteen years and
was responsible for the management and investment of third party
client’s funds. Ms. Chiu is an associate and a fellow of the Institute
of Canadian Bankers. Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace by the Hong Kong Government in 1992 and as
Cavaliere by the Italian Government in 1999 and she is Montblanc
Outstanding Business Lady of the year 2002 in Hong Kong.
Ms. Chiu is Chairman of Prime Investments Group Limited and
also an independent non-executive director of National Agricultural
Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Qianlong Technology
International Holdings Limited”), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Chiu
is licensed to carry out asset management business under Type
9 regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong). Ms. Chiu was previously
the independent non-executive director of Asia Coal Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 41, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008 and has
accumulated over 19 years of accounting and auditing experience.
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Introduction

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest
of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2014, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), the founder of the
Group, holds both positions. The Board believes that Dr. Cheung
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

Board of Directors

Composition

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprised of six Directors,
including two Executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board during the
year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (appointed on 8 October 2013)

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 24 to 26.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim accounts for approval by
the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

The Company has four Independent Non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule
5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Each Independent Non-executive Directors is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his/her independence.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or

other material/relevant relationship) among the Board members.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all directors, who
are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for discussion. Senior management from time to time
provides to the Directors information on activities and development
of the business of the Group. The Company Secretary takes
detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both draft
and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records, and such minutes are open for inspection
with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has a
conflict of interest, the Director declares his interest and abstains
from voting.
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Four meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

wE

FR EFSHETHREH BEFHFEE
EgERZBEREINT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHS HEBITEERE HE=E

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) & EHHE L (£/E) 4/4 100%

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REIELAE 4/4 100%

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BB L E 3/4 75%

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEE T E 3/4 75%

Ms. Hui Yat Lam FF—EAZ L 4/4 100%

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (appointed HEPZET(RNZFE—=F 2/4 50%
on 8 October 2013) +ANBEEZT)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors FERERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
AGM of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Dr. Cheung, assumes both positions
as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
This deviates from code provision A.2.1, which stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board believes that Dr. Cheung, the founder of the Group,
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

The Board’s decisions are implemented under the leadership
of the Chairman with the involvement and support of the
management of the Group. The Board believes that the balance
of authority and division of responsibility are adequately ensured
by the operations of the Board and management which comprise
experienced and high calibre individuals.
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Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal

clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, and the Company had adopted
a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012 in accordance
with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,
Ms. Hui Yat Lam and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The Committee
Martin. No member of the Audit
Committee is a member of the former or existing auditor of the
Company.

is chaired by Mr. Hong Po Kui,

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and senior management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.
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R

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

FA - BERZEGCHEEEERIHLERE
CWEMAKREZFE  PHRFEVBR
& AEMASKEZ @ BRREEAFAE
el YEEHRDORKE -

TR BERZEGRAETHREE - FKE D
FEZZEE@ZZBRAEIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REER HEBITEBRY HE=R
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) REREE(EE) 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 2B 5 A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam Rz 4/4 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (appointed ~ & BLZ+(R_E—=4% 2/4 50%

on 8 October 2013) +ANBEZEE)

Remuneration Committee FMEES

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, and the Company
had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012
in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirements set out under Code Provision. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Rumeneration Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin, Ms. Hui Yat Lam and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The
Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors’ and senior management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management; and (c)
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:

wE

FAFHNEESERTARTNTEETLS
ﬁ%@%Z%Mq

FR-HFHZESRFT-REHE - EXED
FHFHWEZEeeZ 2 BREIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members RERE HEBITEBRE HER
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman) TREEA(LE) 1 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REM%E 1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 1 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HERZ+T(RZZT—=4%F 0 0%

(appointed on 8 October 2013) +ANBEZT)

Nomination Committee REZEE®

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng,
Frankie, and four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Ms. Hui Yat Lam
and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy. The Committee is chaired by Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. No

change has been proposed to the structure, size and composition.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

R

FR REZECCRIEFECEN EF
ZEERENEE URESFE  ARAERE
RITRBE 2 TS - RE W EBLRE -
MR AR R ES -

TR REZEGHBIT-RERE - FKE D
FRAEAZEGEZZBEREIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members RE®R HE S BITEERE HE =R
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) & E#iE+(2/) 1 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie wEELEE 1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REM LA 1 100%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TR E A 1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam AR 1 100%
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (appointed HEPZET(RZE—=F 0 0%
on 8 October 2013) +ANBEZET)
Corporate Governance Functions EERREE
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been AABWENLTEEREZEE  VHESS
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing g Eiﬁ{mﬁ% RS - B (o) Bl E KR
the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and SARAZBEERBEEREHR - (0)RF RE
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate ﬁ?%%&%_z&%ﬁi IRIFEEEER (¢
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous B NERARNFHERETHETETERR
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c) EERTE  O)HTE  RITREREANEER
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on %%Zﬁﬁ—rﬁ”&/\fﬁiﬂﬂ(ﬁﬂﬁ) X (e) g5t

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance have been complied with. The
Directors believe that they have complied all applicable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also
ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group. As at 31 March 2014, the Directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties or events which may have a significant
impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal
business activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,266,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$136,000.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems.
The system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the
risks of different businesses and activities. Risk control limits are
established according to the appropriate authorisation hierarchy.

The internal control system comprises a well-defined organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority
to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board convened meeting periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. During the
year ended 31 March 2014, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
at its meetings and through reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and executive management, and considered that the
internal control system and procedures of the Group, including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget, are adequate and effective and have

complied with the provisions of the Code during the year.
Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee

meetings.
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Mr. Tse Ching Leung (“Mr. Tse”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Tse
are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile.”

Mr. Tse has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company in
Hong Kong at: 4/F., Sands Building, 17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed
“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)”
above.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available
to shareholders on the Company’s website at http://www.
sausantong.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not
less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.

Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of health, beauty and
related products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014, and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date, are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to 160.

Transfer of Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$3,221,000
(2013: profit of HK$6,177,000) has been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 58 to 59.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements on page
106.

Convertible notes

Details of the movements in convertible notes of the Group are set
out in note 23 to the financial statement on pages 127 to 128.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements on
page 137 to 138.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$35,048,000 (2013:
HK$35,223,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014 is set out in note 11 to the financial statements on
pages 103 to 105.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements on pages 133 to
137.
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Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (appointed on 8 October 2013)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Ms. Hui Yat Lam
and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy as at the date of this annual report
and therefore still considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 24 to 26.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served
by either party to the other provided that such notice period shall
not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the
term of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
and a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-
controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional items
of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed for
a term expiring on 31 July 2013 with the term being renewed for
a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2013. Save
for a total fee of approximately HK$154,000 for all of them for
the year ended 31 March 2014, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EEvaER

EEMENARALEEMME AR LM
RAFRFEAXEREDAFEZETMEX
BHTERAREREEAER

EERFETHRAERROD ZERE
5879}

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H ARAIEEkF
EITBRABRESEZHBATIARRGHE
B EAE (TR ABEARPERN([EERBE
&G D EXVER) Z Bt AR5 ([ 1)
BERRSSIAE - MARIEES REEIEHE
XVEREB 7 R E DI TE MG AR E) KB A
(BIEREFES MBS KRz BBIE - HHR
BREERB ZERR SRR IBREES
MEREIRDIE 35215 FEE - siBRIEAIER
FHRBIE 5.46 £ 5.67 G A QT RHE AT
HWE ¢

RARBIRD 2R

Number of shares

RO EE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal AR RAFE
Name of directors interests interests Total ERITRA
EEHNE AREER B A R 55 wmy ERzHYEIHL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 31,332,000 40,322,700 71,654,700 24.05%
ok EIE L (Note 1)
(K1zt 1)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie — 700,000 700,000 0.23%
REELAE
Note 1: BT

The 31,332,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited (“Biochem”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The
entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley.

% 31,332,000 P& % 17 B8 Biochem Investments Limited
([Biochem |)# 74 - Biochem 5 — N EBRE L BB+
fBASZ 2 BBR AT ° Biochem Z &2 82 BT A B K E
MELT2EHEE -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RAA RGBS 212
B E

AR EEBIR 2 a8 5k B AR D AR A
HURTARTNEEZMRE - HFENT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in
long position  the Company’s
in underlying issued
shares of the share capital
Subscription Company LN
price per share RAAQF BRTRA
Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period SRES HER A+ Eamzin
Esps RTEH T8 REE HRZEY BAk
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 2 March 2011 2 March 2011 — HK$0.66 2,000,000 0.67%
REERE “Z——F=AZH 1 March2016 0.66 /7T
—T——%=AZHZE
—T-R"E=A-H
Note: Bt -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically

settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2014, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
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or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

A £ AR IR E S R 2
336 IEBETE Y BRERHRARAADE
mF -

Rz HR

Number of shareholding

EREE
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERRER g1 & BoO
Biochem Beneficial owner 31,332,000 10.52%
EmBEEA
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 40,322,700 13.53%

ok HE L EHEAA

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

BREXPEREEIN R-T—NFE=A=1—
B BRARRIESIASEERTHAB (HE
SHR EXEZREBITRABRED 2
Foga I—am) s SEEERA TR AR
A HERDRESFTELEBRDEIORE
M /AR 8 75 N BB 1601 55 336 15 T IARC 8%

ESWEROES 2ER

BREXTEEREBZITHRABRKN 2R
BI—EREEEIN  EAES ERE 2B
AR T \BRZ F ZRF RERE RS SRR
RAAREBARB Z B HESMER - M
WEREITEZSEN - BARA - EEZBRA
A~ R AR E QR SE R B QAR
TERZHREEEARSEMEMEABR
ZRREHERN o
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Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing rules
throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
report.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 27 to 40.

Events after the Reporting Period
There is so such event occurring after the reporting period.
Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 97.16% (2013: 97.16%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 93.56% (2013: 92.57%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 46% (2013: 37.04%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$742,000 (2013: HK$374,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014

ZERBRR
REBRNFE N 2 2B Z183EL 742,0008 7T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B #% & Eh¥R &

’\?}

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG | KRB i

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

BEEZRERAG

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B # & Eh¥R &

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS #%
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ T —NF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

B
HERA

=5

St
ETILONES
R WA
—BRRITRHX
EE R
WA

FEIEARE X (BE), SRR

BR B A1 2 7
PRISIF X
FREF
BER
ZN/NIEZZ SN
FEER A S
FREF

BRER
HEARHE

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Note
(i3

5(a)

10

F63EF 160 B Z Tt

—H5 -

[
Jn

K
s

2014 2013
—E2-mF —E-=%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FET
1,362,916 1,141,662
(1,189,750) (974,098)
173,166 167,564
15,996 3,272
3,359 1,414
(85,050) (83,8693)
(85,223) (71,829)
22,248 16,558
(8,647) (1,798)
(3,669) 668
14,932 15,428
(7,287) (7,870)
7,645 7,558
3,221 6,177
4,424 1,381
7,645 7,558
HK cents HK cents
1.29 2.49
SR B®mRZ



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SREeEEREMEZEIKNER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ =L —NF=-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAETT271)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, net of nil tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

FREF

FREMEEKE

HER BN BEERGEZEE ¢

— BEBINNBARZ
SR MELZ
PERZER - EHIAZFER

FREEKEHEEE
HER
ZN/NETEZZ =N
JRYERAR RS

FREEWSAE

— 85 -
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2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
7,645 7,558
1,657 571
9,302 8,129
4,143 6,478
5,159 1,651
9,302 8,129
E63EFE160 B2 NI ELEMEIHRERZ




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &k &

At 31 March 2014 R=Z—MNF=/F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in joint ventures

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to related parties
Deferred income

Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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2014 2013

—F-mEF —F-=F

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET

12 32,626 27,842
13 6,722 8,386
14 320 320
16 2,047 5,704
41,715 42,252

17 26,272 13,169
18 154,880 132,153
18 78,715 62,093
19 9,385 9,278
24(a) - 62
99,647 73,546

368,899 290,301

20 40,291 18,585
21 42,364 52,927
21 57,075 45,373
22 730 20,714
16 1,896 19
19 1,511 1,392
17,671 21,812

24(a) 1,238 1,613
162,776 162,435

206,123 127,866

247,838 170,118




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2014 R=ZZE—FE=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Other long-term liability
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
QEIE S
HipRHIAE
EERARE

BEERH

BEXRf#E

[EEN
G

e IR &

ZAYNCIE PN L Fadir

FEFER M

SRR

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
23 48,324 —
32 17,102 16,444
24(b) 4,652 4,393
70,078 20,837
177,760 149,281

27
2,980 2,483
150,420 123,031
153,400 125,514
24,360 23,767
177,760 149,281

=

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 ExgR=F

June 2014.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

M
Director
Ea

TiEE o

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REE
Director

— 80

EZE

E63EF 160 B2 Mz Tt H
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bf#&Ar R &
At 31 March 2014 R-—ZE—MFE=/=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE FET FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIRE 15 4 4
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ EPNGIE 15 66,229 59,182
Prepayments, deposits and other FERFIE -« B REMER
receivables IE 18 12,399 12,413
Cash and cash equivalents RBe MRS EEY 21,748 150
100,376 71,745
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHIY B 2 ) 5k E 15 1,998 1,809
Other payables and accrued charges — Hh e FUIE N BT B 21 1,550 1,310
Amount due to a director Bt —RZEEHIE 22 147 20,192
3,695 23,311
Net current assets REBEEFE 96,681 48,434
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRSERE 96,685 48,438
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes AR =R 23 48,324 -
Other long-term liability HEfMREEE 32 17,102 16,444
65,426 16,444
NET ASSETS EEFH 31,259 31,994
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B #& AR R &
At 31 March 2014 R-—ZE—MFE=/F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARKHE
Share capital A7
Reserves 1
TOTAL EQUITY LSRR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
June 2014.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
=S
Director

EF

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

2014 2013

=EF-mE —E=F

Note HK$°000 HK$000

Hiat FET TR
27

2,980 2,483

28,279 29,511

31,259 31,994

FEER-T—MENA -+ ABIEREE

g -

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
REE
Director

EZ
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F63EF160 B Z Tt
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ T —NF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

At 1 April 2012

Changes in equity for
2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Cancellation of share
options

Redemption of convertible
notes

Appropriation fo the
PRC statutory surplus
reserve

Partial disposal of equity
interests in a subsidliary

Issue of written put option

Dividends paid to non-
controling interests

At 31 March 2013

Note
i3

W-E-Zf
mA-A

tg-zEy
gy

Emigh
ERENE

EneEkELs

B

EOTARRE
23

BfivlizE

BhEE
HEHA]
WERFZRE %
FEEDAE R
s aRELL

RE

=
5

A
N

H-%-=£

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #REE=E 8K
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRAREAER
Share- The PRC
based Convertible  statutory
payment notes  surplus Acc- Non-
Share Share  Merger  Exchange  reserve  reserve  resenve Other  umulated controling Total
capltal  premum  resene  reserve R mER REEE  resene losses Tota  interests  equity
RE BREE AkRE  EXRE  AYEE  ZERE RBRE AMEE  ZHER AL HARER  EREE
HK$'000  HKB'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AT TAr  TAr  TEr  FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr TEr TEr
2483 160072 (3,637) 6,673 10796 1,315 2,668 - 61382 118988 23382 142,370
- - - - - - - - 6,177 6,177 1,381 7,598
- - - 301 - - - - - 301 210 51
- - - 301 - - - - 6,177 6,478 1,651 8,129
- - - - (64) - - - 64 - - -
- - - - - (131) - - 1315 - - -
- - - - - - 1,79 - (1,79) - - -
- - - - - - - 1649 - 16492 3508 20,000
- - - - - - - (l64u) - (l64u) - (l64u)
- - - - - - - - - - [
2483 160072 (3,637) 6974 10732 - 4463 48 (55621) 125514 23767 149,281

ZR=t-R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #&#
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B#E -ZT—F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

At 1 April 2013

Changes in equity for
2014;

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Cancellation and expiry of
share options

Issue of convertible notes

Appropriation to the PRC
statutory
Surplus reserve

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses

Dividends paid to non-
controling interests

At 31 March 2014

R-E-=%
BA-A

.
Fifd:

EncEhanE

ERETHRER

EUARRE
BRDEER

BBEE

Rkl
S
i TR RER 7

Re

H-%-mg
ZA=t-H

Note
#i

23

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN L
Share- The PRC
based Convertible ~statutory
payment notes  surplus Acc- Non-
Share Share  Merger Exchange  reserve  reserve  reserve Other  umulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve Rt TER  REEE  reseve  losses  Total interests  equity
Bx  ROEE AKEE EXRE ARRE ZHEE BHERE HMRE 2HEE % FERER BEUE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
fér FEr TR FEr  fEr TR FEn fEr TR FEn  TEr TEL
2483 160,072 (3,637) 6,974 10,732 - 4,463 48 (65621) 125514 23,767 149,281
- - - - - - - - 3,201 3,201 4424 7,645
- - - 922 - - - - - 922 735 1,657
- - - 922 - - - - 3,201 4143 5,159 9,302
- - - - 2% - - - 2,082 - - -
- - - - - 1,925 - - - 1,925 - 1,925
- - - - - - 2,210 - 220 - - -
497 21,850 - - - - - - - nM - nM
- (529) - - - - - - - (529) - (529)
- - - - - - - - - - (4566)  (4,566)
2980 181,393  (3637) 789 7,750 1,925 6,673 48 (51,628 153400 24360 177,760
of the consolidated FEO3EF160B MM ERATBREZ

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part

financial statements.

—8ptn
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #4&HR &R
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ T —NF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Interest income

— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

— Finance costs

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables

— Share of losses/(profits) of joint
ventures

— Net foreign exchange loss

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from related parties

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables

Increase in other payables and
accrued charges

Decrease in deferred income

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
joint ventures

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
related parties
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SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERA R

Note
Htat

5(a)
5(c)

5(c)

5(c)

2014 2013
—Z2-—nmF —F=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
14,932 15,428
(328) (257)
209 (127)
3,647 1,798
1,664 686
8,278 9,037
1,323 370
3,669 (668)
785 198
34,179 26,465
(13,103) (3874)
(31,409) (41,481)
(9,263) (20,240
(107) 525
(10,563) 19,299
11,702 7,173
(4,141) (6,144)
1,877 (3,571)
119 (5,071)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT %4&
For the year ended 31 March 2014 B#Z T —NF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Cash used in operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Interest received

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Net cash inflow on acquisition of

subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of property,

plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of intangible

assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans
Proceeds from issue of convertible

notes, net of expenses

Proceeds from issue of shares, net of

expenses

Proceeds from partial disposal of
equity interests in a subsidiary

Advances from a director
Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

Interest on convertible notes paid
Interest on bank loans paid

AREERB RS

ENTFELEMER
EUH B

AREEEH cREFHE

REEH

WEMBAR ZHERA

HEME  BEREREZ
IR

BEWX  HERZEZ

BEBILEE 2N

RARREFS RS FHE

BMEED

FIBRITERZ SRR
BITABRBRERZAER
R FI X
BITRAD 2 RIS RA
ERFA
ST R B ER D B 2
S 5IA
KEEFZEHR
BEERITER

SIS TR i s Z LR

BN RERER S
ENRITESRNE

FER

F%

35

15 -

BEnE8R

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ks FET FEIT
(20,709) (23,419)
(7,436) (10,243)
328 257
(27,817) (33,405)
31 = 1,428
24 836
(13,001) (14,096)
= (9,072)
(12,977) (20,904)
98,323 49,261
29,400 —
21,818 —
32 = 20,000
16 41
(76,894) (45,567)
(4,566) (4,774)
= (400)
(2,140) (1,166)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT HREBRE&HRER
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ T —NF=A=+—RHItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Net cash generated from financing REBEFBHHE

activities FEE

Increase/(decrease) in cash and HeERRESEEY
cash equivalents i, GR)

Cash and cash equivalents ROB—BAZREREE
at 1 April ZEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgm %
changes

Cash and cash equivalents R=A=+—HZEE2R
at 31 March REZEY

Major non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the proceeds from issue of
a convertible note to a director of HK$20,000,000 were satisfied
by setting off an equivalent amount of outstanding owing by the
Company to that director (see note 23(b)).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the proceeds on
redemption of convertible note issued on 5 November 2010 with
a principal amount of HK$20,000,000 were dealt with in the
Company’s current account with a director (see note 23(a)).

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.
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2014 2013

—2-mF —E=F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FET T
65,957 17,395

25,163 (36,914)

73,546 110,028

938 432

99,647 73,546

EXFRERS :

HE-_ZT-NFZAZ+—HILFE WESH
AT A AR R I8 2 P15 /18 20,000,000 7 7T
EEBEEAARBRZES I AREEBETREE
E(RWE23(b)) °

HEz-_Z—=F=ZA=+—RHLFE B
BER=ZFT—ZEF+-AFAHEET XE&H
20,000,000 & 7T 2 ATAIR ZH 2 FIE R IEE R
RARHEES 2T RRARIE(RKFE23() ©

EOE3EF 160 A ZME I FHEMBHRRLZ

— 15 -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 20083.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and 4th Floor, Sands Building,
17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in joint
ventures.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

BB TTIIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued certain new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) that
are first effective for the year ended 31 March 2014. Of

these, the following developments are relevant to the

Group’s financial statements:

HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Amendments Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance
HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Amendments Financial Statements — Presentation of ltems

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Annual
Improvements
Projects

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated,
by focusing on whether the entity has power over the
investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect of
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in
joint ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint
operations and joint ventures. Entities are required to
determine the type of an arrangement by considering
the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other
facts and circumstances relevant to their rights and
obligations under the arrangement. Joint arrangements
which are classified as joint operations under HKFRS
11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent
of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All
other joint arrangements are classified as joint ventures
under HKFRS 11 and are required to be accounted for
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed as an accounting policy choice.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 11,
has changed its accounting policy with respect to

the Group

its interests in joint arrangements and re-evaluated
its involvement in its joint arrangements. The Group
has reclassified the investment from jointly controlled
entities to joint ventures. The investment continues to
be accounted for using the equity method and therefore
this reclassification does not have any material impact
on the financial position and the financial results of the
Group.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those previously required by the respective
standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s
assets and liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements
Comprehensive Income

— Presentation of Items of Other

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain
conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to
use the new titles “consolidated statement of profit or
loss” and “consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these consolidated financial statements.

Other than as noted above, the adoption of the new
or amended HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies applied in
these consolidated financial statements for the years
presented.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (see note 35).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&

SAEEHI

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree
to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(e) and (i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(®)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

10.0% — 20.0%
10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% — 20.0%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of

Leasehold improvements

leases (whichever is
shorter)
Motor vehicles 20.0% — 30.0%
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired
by the Group and have finite useful lives are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(ii)

(M)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
such as a default or

— a breach of contract,
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in joint ventures recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(d)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(i)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(i)

(i).

— For trade and other current receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

U]

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible notes
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
convertible notes reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ##85E#ZKRER QA

BB TTIIR)

2 FEEHBE#E)

(m)

(n)

(0)

MEEE

M REENTRAFEREERS
AARTER - RN FHER®% - HEtE
ERBHEAARTER VT HERHE
HEOHEEME 2 TAE8E 2R
EAEANERER  HKRERF
TEAEBEHRNBRAER

FEAS B 5 SRR R H A FE 4 7R

N8 53R R B b e SR
BAFEER BNESFEARE
il FE A R IR EL AR IR B SR A BV BR
FRIFBEIRZFETA > RIEZEBR
TRAARFIER

RERRESEEY

ReMAeFEVERREAIERLE
REHNBRERS  HEEEZDHER
AR HERRFE=ZEAAZHZ
RITRFRBE S ARIRITIHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

(i)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the government
in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute, based
on a certain percentage of payroll, to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

(if)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity
(see note 2(q)).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products and the sale of health, beauty and related
products is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

®

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised in profit or loss in proportion
to the stage of completion of the service contract.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in respect
of the deferred income upon expiry of the service
contract.

Franchise fees income

Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Referral fee income

Referral fee income is recognised when customers
referred by the Group to other parties and services are
rendered to the customers by the other parties.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

BB TTIIR)

2 FESHEE#)

(x)

TEEE

MAMBRRMEMZILENR
EDBEHEBZFATIRB/IEER
T AR EE TR S i oA B ¥
ZEFER Rz R E R A
SEZERITREEABRGCH
BER R -

R BHREMS  ANERLED
BreadtE  woBEEBHEAU
REFEMEERMRGEE &7
Freiasanl - MIED HE Mk
HRBZTEAREERREET
AR EB AR BR S o fi 3 FE AR B K
ZRBED BRI FHEA

AZFRLN AR ER HHIEIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

3 Turnover 3 XN
The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale REBEFEXBADHBELMLESE
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and B REER NSRS - IRENBER
slimming services, provision of franchise services and sale of ERIEERRE  =EARMEBER -

health, beauty and related products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied EEBEERATPEHZEmZEZERE
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or - RE - EETREMBEED - UKk
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty KEREED N ERS 2 REW A=
and slimming services, net of discounts and franchise fees FHMMEEGEBIRA - £ RNEER
income. The amount of each significant category of revenue RS ETZHFW=STEOT ¢

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—Z=—MF —ZT—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and DI E L N EE
skin care products Em 1,241,842 1,008,752
Provision of beauty and slimming IRIEER KBRS
services 89,509 96,681
Provision of franchise services RREINBE A 1ERS 8,494 8,389
Sale of health, beauty and related HERE - ER XA
products Em 23,071 27,840
1,362,916 1,141,662
Segment information are set out in note 11 to this report. D EPER BN ANREMTE -
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Other revenue and net income

Other revenue

Referral fee income
Management fee income
Interest income

Others

Other net income

Subsidy income from the PRC government
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Others

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

Hitp W A8

A B B e R A

HEMR - BB RREZ
(B1R), W F8

[ 5 e (B51R ) F 8

Hit

e R ERR M R

Hfth W28 I WA 88
2014 2013
—B-mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET T
10,562 -
5,097 2,970
328 257
9 45
15,996 3,272
2,685 1,148
(209) 127
28 (330)
855 469
3,359 1,414
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

(a) Finance costs: (@)
Interest on bank loans

Interest on convertible notes
Interest on other long-term liability

(b) Staff costs: (b

Nl

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

(c) Other items: (c)

Cost of inventories sold and
services provided*
Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment losses on
— trade receivables
— other receivables
Operating lease rentals: minimum lease
payments
— property and display location
rentals
— other equipment

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes

5 BRBAIRF

BB RS M E IR T 5% IR

BMEMA

RITEFAE
AR R Z S
HipRHRAEZHE

BTHRA :

o BRREMET
FE ARG &2 K

HIAR :

BEEFEMRERHERE 2
AR

ZHET N &

BB EHEE

ME - B RRETE

BEERERE

— RUWE HFIR

— Hip IR
REHERS  RIEEN
Giika

— MERRTUERS

HK$1,201,000 (2013: HK$1,806,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of

expenses.
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2014 2013
—E-pmE —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,140 1,166

849 632

658 —

3,647 1,798
70,553 64,140
10,886 9,214
81,439 73,354
1,189,750 974,098
1,497 1,245
1,664 686
8,278 9,037

132 60

1,191 310
26,545 24,511

— 1

EEFERCRURG ZAABIELFBE

TRARITE 21,201,000 (T —=

 :1,806,000/8 7T) * % & # I KRR
A RIEt A BB R 2 AR ARRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 HSEBEBZRAZHAEHR
of profit or loss

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) &=

represents:

BRERANZHIERE

2014 2013
—E-pmE e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax EHiHE — FESEREH
Provision for the year (note 24(a)) FNBHE (I 5F24(a) 7,766 9,104
Overprovision in respect of prior years BAFEBEEE (668) —
7,098 9,104
Deferred tax EZEBIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BE A Jo SO B R
differences (note 24(b)(i)) ZRA(HTEL 24(0)0) 189 (1,234)
Income tax expense FriS Rt X2 7,287 7,870
() No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made () SBEBFNEHMET  BRAE

for 2014 (2013: HK$NIil) as the companies in the
Group either have sustained tax losses or have

no assessable profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax

purposes. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries

is charged at the appropriate current rates of

taxation ruling in relevant countries.

BB AR ERGRERE
EERERTOG A - W EL
T -MOFEERBRBNETE
BE—=F T8 -8
SN 2~ B 2 B IR T 1% 4E B B
RBITZEEERR R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

(i

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates
of 5% or 10% upon the distribution of such profits
to foreign investors or companies incorporated
in Hong Kong or for other foreign investors,
respectively. Pursuant to the grandfathering
arrangements of the PRC tax law, dividends
receivable by the Group from PRC subsidiaries
in respect of the undistributed profits derived
prior to 31 December 2007 are exempt from the
withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, no deferred tax
liabilities have been recognised in respect of tax
that would be payable on the unremitted profits
of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1 January
2008 as the Company is in a position to control
the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries
and no distribution of such profits is expected
to be declared from the PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future.
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7
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BRERANZHERE - (&)

BEBEFRBEBE BT /\F
—RA—BRZAEE BB
RNAEZ &N - ARAIINHIZE
EREBRBEMALZ AFE
HAbHNR I E & 5 K52 5 5 T
B 9 BlII% 5% 35 10% 8 4 78
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EHZH - AEERKERE
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W Z’RE  REBEIAE
i o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss (Continued)

(o)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation
Less: share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Others

Actual tax expense

B B A4 A
o EIERERE(ER),

ikl

BRI BRI 2 BEBIA -
RERNARBRIEERZ
B2 BREAE

TR RAS 2 MG E

BERBTWAZ R E

AERERERZ
BT E

RERRBARAERZ
MG E

HABERERHEABERL
2

BEFE 2 BREERE

Hitp

BERBIARX

REBRBERAZAEB @

FEBRX RERRET E
SHEFI 2 35 -

2014 2013
—E-pmE e
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TETT
14,932 165,428
(3,669) 668
18,601 14,760
2,341 3,107
3,842 2,438
(757) (160)
(736) (478)
5,100 2,761
(2,212) (176)
(668) -

377 378
7,287 7,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

7 Directors’ remuneration

BB TTIIR)

7 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

AN
e

B S ER AR Y

BEEBATENE 161 EMELHE
EEMeT

Salaries, allowances and Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees benefits in kind contributions Total
203 #e RERENAE RAGGHIR af
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
S§-QmE  “F--F | ZB-RE “3--f | ZR-BF  “F-zF  ZR-QE “T-=F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEn AL Fén & Fén Er b7 AL
Executive directors 782
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley FEREL = - 3,218 3,097 15 15 3,233 3,112
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie FRERE - - 649 644 15 15 664 659
Independent non- executive BUFNAES
directors
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEARE 40 40 - - - - 40 40
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin RENLE 30 30 - - - - 30 30
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F-ERT 60 60 - - - - 60 60
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ekt b
(appointed on 8 October 2013) (RZB-=%1
ANREZH) 2% - - - - - 2% -
154 130 3,867 3,741 30 30 4,051 3,901
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2013: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2013: four) individuals are as follows:

e hEbMe

BRIRETEIFR

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement scheme contributions

The emoluments of the four (2013: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
BIT

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of approximately HK$24,478,000
(2013: HK$20,120,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

BB TTIIR)

T ITZE 1,000,000 77T
1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000

REHAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

RERBHALE  —H(CF- =4
—H)REE - AMGHERERK
7o BAME(ZF-=F MBIAL

Bl mmEmT

2014 2013

—2-mF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
2,935 3,979
54 60
2,989 4,039

MA(ZE—=F: mR)&ESHFALZM

BN TIIEHE

2014 2013

—E-pmE —F—=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A&
4 3
- 1

AATRERE AEBEER

NARGEA AEIGGE BN BEEERAR
RIB TS SRR BRI 2 E518 49 24,478,000 78
TT(=FE—=4 : 20,120,000 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

10 Earnings per share 10 BREAER

(@) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3,221,000 (2013: HK$6,177,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 248,838,000 shares (2013: 248,294,000
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April AIOA—BETLEik
Effect of issue of shares under placement 1RIEAC&E3ITIRID 2 &
(note 27(c)(ii) (K1zL27(c)i)
Weighted average number of ordinary R=F=+—H2ZZBRN
shares at 31 March #1592
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 March 2013 and 2014 is the same as the basic
earnings per share as the assumed exercise of the
outstanding share options and convertible notes has
anti-dilutive effect.

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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BREXREF

BREXRBFTEARG RSB A
FE b % A 493,221,000 JT(=
T — = £ :6,177,0008 7T ) &
FRAEETLTBRZMEFHH
#9248,838,000 % (= & — = & :
248,294,000 )5t E T -

BBERINEFTH

2014 2013
—2—mnmF ==
'000 '000
FH® T
248,294 248,294
544 —
248,838 248,294
SRBERN

MR AR AT R T {8 8 A e mJ 42
REEREEREETE  HHE—
E-—=ZFR_FT-HF=ZA=1+—
BEFEZEREERNRGHRE
ABHMER -



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

11 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s financial information mainly from business
lines prospective. Accordingly, the Group’s operating
segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other net income, finance costs, share of
results of joint ventures and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant
and equipment, current tax assets and other assets that
are managed on a central basis. Segment liabilities mainly
exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
and other liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

BB TTIIR)

11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

DREE

B IR B O ARSE (T E A DAY 2 0
MREZ REBEEENE - JITHEEE
BUEHBRAERNARE L MHER -
Eit - AEEZEEHER

() PDHEESHEESER
(i) REEDREERE

(i) MMBEAEXB(BERMBEASEER
HERE XA NEMAREER)

iv) HERRE  XARBRES

—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f 278 s£BH4) -

11 Segment reporting (Continued)

BB TTIIR)

11

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments

as provided to the Group’s Executive Directors for the

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance for the year is set out below.

(a)

Reportable segment revenue from
external customers

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate other revenue

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures

Profit hefore taxation
Income tax expense

Proft for the year

Provision for impairment losses on
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables
Amortisation of intangiole assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Segment assets
— Property, plant and equipment
— Intangible assets
— Interests in joint ventures
— Other assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabiliies
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to segment non-current
assets

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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PESvEE

ROERIRL
ROERTEMRE

BARE

BEARAL(EE)

HEERER
- RUASE
— AEYE
EVRRES
Nz BERRETE
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NHEE
Kok
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Bk
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A RBERRE

Segment results, assets and liabilities

e MR ERAR MR

DEREE)

FERAAEERNTEERBIEDBERD
Be B S4B AT A% 2 AN B A 2/ 282 Bk
AT -

(a) 2WXEE BEEREE
Distribution sale of cosmetic  Provision of beauty and Sale of health, beauty and
and skin care products slimming services related products

AHHENHR RUZAR Franchise operations HERR 2BR Total

#iER SREH EafER HBER af
214 213 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
S8-MF "F--F Z§-QWF “T--F ZR-PBE "T--F RN "F--F ZFMF “F-
HKS000  HK$'000 ~ HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000 = HKS'000  HK$'000
FAr,  TEr  TEn  TEr.  fEm  TEr | fEn  TEL | TEm TEr
1,241,842 1,008,752 89,509 96,681 30,195 34,986 1,370 1243 © 1362916 1,141,662
271,999 23,059 1,891 (1.614) (1,094) (2n) 595 (577) 29,391 20,597
(7,143 (4,086)
- 47
22,248 16,558
(3,647) (1,798)
(3,669) 668
14,932 15,428
(7,281) (7,870
7,645 7,558
132 60 - - - - - - 132 60
- - 1,191 310 - - - - 1,191 30
- - 1,664 636 - - - - 1,664 686
1,699 1630 5,708 6,752 832 605 2 15 8,241 9,002
3,631 3,640 21,825 19,046 1,107 1450 - 2 32,563 24,938
- - 6,722 8,386 - - - - 6,722 8,386
- - 2,047 5704 - - - - 2,047 5,704
206806 173560 104,181 77,503 16,801 25,19 703 619 328491 276,881
40,791 16,644
40614 332,553
(117,963) (99,389 (30,921) (34595 (10,908)  (10,699) @ ()7 (159,794)  (144,681)
(73,0600 (38,591)
(232,854 (183.272)
1,789 901 10,736 20,576 465 361 - - 12,940 21,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

(b)

BB TTIIR)

e R ERR M R

11 Segment reporting (Continued) 11 28ERE®
Geographical information (b) b E R
The Group’s revenue from external customers REBINDBEFP 2 WK BHEEHIE
and information about its non-current assets by MEBEEZERIZMAEME » 0
geographical locations are as follows: N
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HE BB &
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“Z-mE —T-=F ZB-0OF _—T-=Ff ZBT-NF _—T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FET FHET
Revenue from external ~ SMEEF 2
customers 6 1,301,368 1,081,343 61,548 60,319 = 1,362,916 1,141,662
Non-current assets FRBEE 24,487 24,834 17,228 17,418 41,715 42,252
Major customers (c) EEEF

(c)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, two customers
(2013: one) with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue. Revenue from distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care products to these customers in
the PRC is set out below:

ZPA
=FB

Customer A
Customer B

" The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of

the total revenue.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

REBEZE-_ZT—NWHF=A=+—A1t
FE MEBE(ZZE—=F: —8)F¥
FZRBEREBRZT10% A L ©
MtEREEFE D HIHE K RE
EBERZBEHINT

2014 2013
—E-lEF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FET
269,461 184,791
215,021 N/A ¢

TOERNE RIS 10% SA £
By
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

12 Property, plant and equipment 12 Y% - MEBERRE

The Group &M

Furniture Office and Leasehold

and computer improve-
fixtures  equipment ments Motor  Construction
Machinery FRR BOE fE vehicles  in progress Total
i EELE ElkRf EST RE kEEIR aft

HK8'000 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

Cost; A
At 1 April 2012 RZZ-—EWA-H 18,311 4,963 7,883 28,241 9,369 - 68,767
Exchange adjustments EREZ 36 16 30 34 69 148 333
Additions RE 797 101 1,346 199 3,433 8,220 14,096
Acquisttion of subsidiaries ~ WEHEB AT
(note 31) (Hit31) - 9 14 - - 345 368

Disposals nE (99) (30) (311) - (2,251) - (2,691)
At 31 March 2013 RoE-Z%

“A=1-H 19,045 5,059 8,962 28,474 10,620 8,713 80,873
At 1 April 2013 WZE-=FNA—H 19,045 5,059 8,962 28,474 10,620 8,713 80,873
Exchange adjustments ERLRE 81 36 65 279 154 151 766
Additions NE 1,336 1,732 1,142 7,336 1,380 75 13,001
Transfers £+ - - - 8,939 - (8,939) -
Disposals nE (638) (408) 68) (1,930) - - (3,044)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-IE

“A=1-H 19,824 6,419 10,101 43,098 12,154 - 91,596
Accumulated depreciation: B34 E
At 1 April 2012 NZZE--FWA-H 14,245 3,995 5,991 16,703 4,832 - 45,766
Exchange adjustments ELAE 26 13 20 118 33 - 210
Charge for the year ERFE 1,707 379 690 4,442 1,819 - 9,037
Written back on disposals K& (89) (25) (278) - (1,590) - (1,982)
At 31 March 2013 NZE-=F

ZR=t+-H 15,889 4,362 6,423 21,263 5,094 - 53,031
At 1 April 2013 RZZ-=fmA-A 15,889 4,362 6,423 21,263 5,094 - 53,031
Exchange adjustments EREE 57 30 4 268 73 - 472
Charge for the year ERE 1,344 383 1,012 3,588 1,951 - 8,278
Written back on disposals ~ HERER (616) (280) (48) (1,867) - - (2,811)
At 31 March 2014 RZB-mF

=A=1-H 16,674 4,495 7,431 23,252 7,118 - 58,970
Carrying amount; REE
At 31 March 2014 R-B-mF

ZR=t+-H 3,150 1,924 2,670 19,846 5,036 - 32,626
At 31 March 2013 RZE-ZF

“A=1-H 3,156 697 2,539 7,211 5,526 8,713 27,842
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

13 Intangible assets

The Group

Cost:

Additions and at 31 March 2013,
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014

Accumulated amortisation:

Charge for the year and at 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2014

Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

BB TTIIR)

13 B EE
AEE

Website costs

LR A
HK$’000
FET
A
RERMRN-_ZE—=¢=A=+—8 -
—E-ZFMA-AK
—ECATSASTH 9,072
R
ENRHRN 2 -=F=A=+—B e
RZZE—=FMHA—H 686
FNEH 1.664
W-Z—mE=A=+—H 2,350
REE :
W-_E—=F=ZA=+—8 8,386

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general

and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

FAZHHEERSAGBERZI—R
RATHRFEX ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

14 Goodwill

Cost:
At 1 April

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

At 31 March

Accumulated impairment:

At 1 April and 31 March

Carrying amount:

At 31 March

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies as set out in note 2(e).

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%

14 HE
The Group
TEE
2014 2013
—Z-mF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
R
M A—H 341 271
B BT B A IR EE A
(H1a£31) - 70
W=A=+—H 341 341
ZERE :
PrOA—BR=ZA=+—H 21 21
FRMEE
R=A=+—H 320 320

BB ZM 200 T2 NEB S AR
N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

14 Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to three individual cash-generating units (CGUs)
comprising five (2013: five) subsidiaries, engaging in the
following business segment:

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products

Provision of beauty and slimming services

Provision of management consultancy
services

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are:

2014 and 2013

5% — 15%
12%

— Gross margin
— Discount rate

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks.

RHERNARRG
TR E IR AR TS

BB TTIIR)

14

7 $HHH E A B E

BHEz)

SBEASRNS  BECHHDEE =(E
HAER(ZZE—=% : AfHE)MBRRAEK
ZERREeELEMREELEMN) - &
B AR DRIREATEB DB -

2014 2013
—2-mF =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

37 37

210 210

73 73

320 320

ReEL Bz kO eREREAEER
BABEE - WEEEARARRERE
BEZEZAFRYBREEFEL ZRESR
2788 -

ERBEMENATRZEERRR

—E-MERZFE—=F

— EF%
— g%

5% — 15%
12%

EEERBEBERRLAHMSERE

HMEBEREEMNE - FIERZMERES
AT - WRBREFERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD + AR
Less: impairment losses Ji O REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A B FRIE
Less: impairment loss JB B EE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAT B B A &) kI8

The amounts due from or to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ##85E#ZKRER QA

15 RMBARZRERER &

1% B I8 A B RRIE
The Company
N

2014 2013
—Z—MmF —ET—=%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET
3,664 3,664
(3,660) (3,660)
4 4
235,608 206,549
(169,379) (147,367)
66,229 59,182
1,998 1,809

R R ENIMBARRIBEAERR 28

KMBHBERER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

15

Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of
these subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are set out below:

Place of  Particulars of issued

Name of company operations  and paid up capital
AR XY CRORMRRARE
Incorporated in the British Virgin [slends:
REERXRSIMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each
(30 1,000 R EHAE 1 X2 R
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
2% 1REREE 1 ZTLRA
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS$1 each

REERRARRLT 1RERAE 1 ZTLRD

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
B 100 REHREE 1 XT LB

Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
B W0EEHRAER 1 XTBD

Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
B W0EEHRAR 1 XL BD

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
3 100REHREE 1 XTIRN

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
3 100 REREE 1%L HH

Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
B 10REHRAEE 1 XTI

L'intitut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each

de beauté (en France) a Limited B4 100 REREE 1 ZT RN
Bravo Media Limited (‘BML") Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
&% 1REREE 1 ZTLRA

BB TTIIR)

15 RIBAR2RERER &
15 Bf B8 X B FRIR (40)

RZZE-—WF=A=+—H ARFEE
FEERTINMERR(R/MA LT AR
KM BB AIMNKSL MK - BIAE
HEBEMA LT ARMERZ E2HE)HE
Bt - BRRAZRIN - AR ERR
TRk - ZEWMBRARINR _ZE—HF=A
=t+—BZFHBET

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

RRRRERRLH
Direct Indirect  Principal activity

EE BE  IEXE

100% - Investment holding
REHER

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Investment holoing
REER

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Investment holding
RERER

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Inactive
gEEx

100% - Investment holding
RARR

100% - Inactive
gER%

100% - Inactive
fE2x

100% - Investment holoing
REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b 3885 + ¥ AAEITIIR)

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of  Particulars of issued
Name of company operations  and paid up capital

ARER gX4%  ERORARRAGRE

Incorporated in the British Virg/n Islands: (Continued)
REGEXESHNAT - (£)

Gold Platform Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
B 0REREE 1 XTZRA

Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
B 1REREE 1 FTLRIA

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US1 each
B 100REREE 1 ZTL R

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited (‘SST (SH)") Hong Kong 1,000 shares of USS1 each
(note (i) (& )) B 1000k BRAEE FT KA
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou) ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each
Limited (‘SST (HZ)) B 100REREE 1 ET LR
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
(ST (SHDY) fnote (i) (41 ()) B 10REREE 1 ETL R
Sau San Tong (Beiing) Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of USS$1 each

3 100 REHEE 1 X2 BN

Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each
(30 100 REBRAE 1 ET LR

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each
Limited (‘ST (S2)" Bk 100REREEETRR

Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
B 1REREE 1 ETLRA

Incorporated in the United States of America

("USA"):
RETNEEFE 28T -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific USA 1 share of USS1 each
Research Institute Limited X8 LRI vl
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares
BaERRAA B 10,000 %%

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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e MR ERAR MR

15 RMBATIZREREWR FE
1T M B A BB ()

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRRRLA

Dirgct

E%

100%

100%

Indirect

B

100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

IEEH

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Provision of management consultancy
services

RREELARE

Investment holding
RERER

Investment holding

REBR

[nactive
Enex

Investment holding

RABR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

Investment holding

RARR

Inactive
Fhex

Sale of health and beauty products and
investment holding

BERERXRERRRARK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company
AIEH

Incorporated in Hong Kong (Continued)

REEZMAL : (8)

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited
BAEPERRARAT

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim
Institute Limited
EIEREXNRBERRERLERAR

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim
Institute (TST) Limited
EIEREERREURRED L (XDR)ERAT

Sau San Tong Medical Gosmetology Healthy Trim
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited
BIEREXRREERRET L (REE)ARAT

Sau San Tong Management Limited
BIEERERAA

SST Advertising Agency Limited
BtREREERAR

Moon Profit Li
HAEERAT

jted

Highlight Intemational Trading Limited
SrHEREHRRAR

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim
Institute (Shatin) Limited
EIEREXRREURRETL(VA)ERAT

Winic Management Limited
KNERERAT

Winner Sight Limited
ERARLA

Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific
Research Institute (HK) Limited

Jadepower International Limited (*Jadepower’)

ZNARARAA(2))

Place of
operations

LESE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3
Hong Kong
&%

ang Kong

/

Hong Kong

!
Hong Kong
(30
Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B

ang Kong

/

Hong Kong
B

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAFE

100 shares
100k (A
18,750 shares
18,750 R 3

10,000 shares
10,000 %%

100 shares
100&ikH

100 shares
100 R& 1A

10,000 shares
10,000

1 share
15k
100 shares
100 %5

100 shares
100/ {3

1 share
1Rk

2 shares
2RRMA
1 share

1Rk

1 share

1b

BB TTIIR)

e R ERR M R

15 RIBAR2RERER &

15 Bf B8 X B FRIR (40)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRRRLA

Indirect

E3

Direct

BR

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

Principal activity

IRER

[nactive
Tmey

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUEXARGERE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXARGERE

Provision of beauty and slimming Services

REXARARRE

Provision of management consultancy
services

RiHEEHARE

Provision of advertising agency Services

RREESRERE

Inactive
gmax

Inactive
Fmax

Inactive

ik
Investment holding
REER

Inactive
o

Inactive
i

Investment holding
REBR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b 3885 + ¥ AAEITIIR)

15
subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company
ARER

Incorporated in Hong Kong (Continued)

REEZMAL : (8)

Beauty University Management Limited (‘BUML')
FEAEERERAT(XEAE])

Starry Crystal Limited (note (i)
BREBRARAM )

Wide Duo Limited (note (i)
REERAA W)

Incorporated in the PRC:
RAGRMAT -

HE-EREERRAT LE-ER)) frote ()
(W)

LERGBLHEERAR(TRAAL])

/

~ERRARE(RIARLA ([ —EER)
~ERARER(M ARAA( RN )

BEEXA(LR)ERAT

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%

Place of
operations

LESE

Hong Kong

I

Hong Kong
B

ang Kong

li

The PRC
P

The PRC
P
The PRC
P
The PRC
R
The PRC
E
The PRC
E

The PRC
P

The PRC
T

Investments in and amounts due from/to

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAGE

100 shares
100k (

1 share

1S

1 share

1S

Registered capital of US$150,000
&R 150,000 %7

Registered capital of US$5,000,000
& 75,000000%7T
Registered capital of HK$3,500,000
i E743500000 7

Registered capital of HK$3,500,000
AR 3,500,000

Registered capital of HK$1,000,000
it E%1,000,000 %7

Registered capital of RMB500,000
AR AR 5000007

Registered capital of RMB6,000,000
AR ARS6,000,0007

Registered capital of RMB500,000
AR ARR 500,000

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZERERA A

e MR ERAR MR

15 RIMBLATIZREREW &
L PNGIE S )

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

ERERRRRLA

Dirgct

E%

Indirect

B

80%

100%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

IEEH

Provision of a proprietary internet platform
to promote and sell slimming beauty
and health related services and
products and investment holding

RESEEATE NEERESHE
FAREREE RBRER

WRRER
Inactive
TEE%
Inactive
TEE%

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRS

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products

PEEEHERER

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXARGERS

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXARERRH

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXAREERE

Inactive
Tauy

Provision of management consultancy
services and investment holding

REEEEARE R RARR

Provision of franchise services

REMBAERE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
Name of company operations
ARER EXiY
Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
RpEMeT - (£)
HERERE (L) ARAA(EE]) The PRC
hE
ERREEA(LE)ERAD The PRC
hE
EXERHA(LE)BRAR Mote (i) The PRC
HiEm) iF
ERMEZORERANBRAA note (i) The PRC
(i) #
Note:

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRTRARRAFE

Registered capital of US$200,000
HAR200000%T

Registered capital of US$400,000
AR 400000%

Registered capital of US$180,000
A 180,000%

Registered capital of RMB5,000,000
FMERARS5,0000007

(i) Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD),
SST(SH) and E/&—Ff5, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SST(SH),
the directors concluded that the Group has dominant power to
direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on the basis
of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of respective
companies because of contractual arrangements with the other

shareholders of respective companies.

(i) These subsidiaries were established during the year ended 31

March 2014.

The following table lists out the information relating to the

subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”).

The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any inter-

company elimination.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

BB TTIIR)

e R ERR M R

15 RIBAR2RERER &
15 Bf B8 X B FRIR (40)

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREARESLA
Direct Indirect
E# B
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Ktat -

(i)

Principal activity

IRER

Inactive
Tmay

Provision of beauty and slimming services

RUXARGERS

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARGERS

Inactive
Tmey

BEREE{EH A SST(SHD) * SST(SH) &
EB—EB(SSTSH) ZZ2EWB AR Z
50% FEA R - MERP HAARE A B H AR R
ZENRY MEERARNEEHEEE
BH - NERASEHEEARESSES
TE%%Z%%?@SST(SHD)&SST(SH)UEE%
JEE

ZEWMBRAANBE_ZT—OF
=t —BIEFEKIL -

A

TR BRAAREEREASE R ES
(TFER s D 2B AT ZER - TX
E5 2 B E R ISR RIR K 8H A
ZEE e
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Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 EZZ=RERAT

FHEREEA N

FRBEE
mEEE
mEAE
FRBAE

BE/(AR)FE

IR 2 R E

Yozm

FR(ER),5F

rEKE (BR)
k]

NEEIFEBER 2
(&B#8),/ &7

EANEZESC 5l ¥t

RELZESZ
Rene  #8

REREEDZ
Reng  #8

REBERSZ

Beng 8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& R2A RSN - LB TTIIR)

15 Bf B8 X B FRIR (4

e MR ERAR MR

15 RMBARZRERER &

2014
—E-NF

SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)

and its and its and its

subsidiary, subsidiary, subsidiary,

BUML L#E—E#H —EBFRI —EESHM
SST(SH) SST(SZ) SST(HZ)

kH kH kH

NG| i B 2 &) g NG|

EXBAE LE-TES RHABLE —EB8FI —EBHEM
20% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
7,234 697 3,631 1,901 244
13,423 66,261 212,921 39,393 3,342
(8,982) (55,497) (118,717) (70,597) (26,755)

- (4,652) - - -
11,675 6,809 97,835 (29,302) (23,169)
2,335 3,405 44,358 (14,358) (11,353)
83 15,719 1,241,842 7,873 6
(5,865) (2,223) 20,840 (4,152) (2,992)
- 466 1,292 (147) (119)
(1,173) (1,111) 10,211 (2,035) (1,466)

- - 4,566 - -
(13,948) 114 6,880 (2,104) (28)

(1) = (1,736) (58) =

- - 10,257 - -



Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

PSR

FRBEE
MBEE
mBAE
FRBAE

BE/(AR)FE

IR 2 R E

Yoza
FR(ER), 5T
rEdkE (B EHE

NEEIEBER 2
(&#8),/ w7l
EAREIZEY Sl vt

RELZES
Reng  #8

REREESZ
Reng 8

RERERS
Reng 8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

e R ERR M R

15 RIBAR2RERER &
15 Bf B8 X B FRIR (40)

2013

—E-=F
SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(H2)
and its and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,  subsidiary,
BUML LE&—FERE —E/FI —EEmM
SST(SH) SST(S2) SST(HZ)
REH RE RE
EAT MEAE HEAR
EBRE LHE—FH EHAL —EB8RY —EE8mM
20% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET & FET
9,013 5,231 3,540 3,983 240
15,238 61,425 181,364 31,458 3,838
(6,711) (53,697) (99,951) (60,444) (24,136)
— (4,393) — — —
17,540 8,566 84,953 (25,009) (20,058)
3,508 4,283 38,080 (12,251) (9,829)
52 29,663 1,008,752 5,335 190
(2,256) (4,934) 16,759 (5,285) (3,617)
- 208 462 (65) (52)
(454) (2,467) 8,212 (2,590) (1,772)
— — 4774 — —
3,961 (4,135) 17,086 (572) (78)
(9,738) (4,040) (142) (117) —
19,797 — (7,192) — —

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

16 Interests in and amounts due from/to joint

ventures

Share of net liabilities

Amount due from a joint venture

Amounts due to joint ventures

FEIEREFRE
e A =N

e B EREFIR

The amounts due from or to joint ventures are unsecured,

interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of joint ventures, which are accounted for using the

equity method in the consolidated financial statement, at 31

March 2014 are as follows:

Name of company

NEAEH

Wealthy Sound Limited
EBRERAT

EazEe XA (x)

Place of
incorporation/operations

EMEY EREE

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
BE/EE

The PRC/The PRC

BRAT HE/FE

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERITRBERAFE

10,000 shares
10,000 Bz 13

Registered capital
of US$150,000
FEff & 78 150,000 % 7T

Wealthy Sound Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary,

&5 22X AELR) AR QA (together,

“Wealthy Sound

Group”), are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market

prices are not available.

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
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BB TTIIR)

16 REgEhXoRaRER &
NEEREZHRER

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—g-mE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(3,981) (324)
6,028 6,028
2,047 5,704
1,896 19
B ERE EhERELABEER  £85

KMERETEERY -

RZZE—NE=A=+—0 HRAE=Z%
RiFEMBRRPIRZAEERFABN
™

Proportion of effective
ownership interest

EREAREERLY
Direct Indirect Principal activity
B MiE TEEE
- 50%  Investment holding
REAER
- 50%  Provision of beauty and

slimming services

XA R RS

SBRAERRAREZ2EMNBARESES
BB BARAR (FHESEEE])
R EERTIGABTNEZIFLTEEER

HE"



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

16 REgEhXoRERER &

e EIREE)

CEEEZMBERBA(EREN SR
BRZZREHAR)  AREKEETHE

16 Interests in and amounts due from/to joint
ventures (Continued)

Summarised financial information of Wealthy Sound Group,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed below:

BRZEREEHBRBRENAT ¢

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gross amounts of Wealthy Sound Group SEB&EE 2 #%5E
Non-current assets IEmEEE 259 1,118
Current assets mBEE 13,597 23,540
Current liabilities mENBE (17,354) (21,634)
Non-current liabilities EmEBGE (4,464) (3,672)
Net liabilities BEFE (7,962) (648)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: A Rt &ER & E
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 6,680 16,693
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade B2 RIBE(TBEENE S
and other payables and provision) T Jo HoAth & <) 5B Te ) = -
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding  JERSI¢RMEBE(TRIEENE S
trade and other payables and provision) — FXIE Kz £ & < 5008 K B ) - -
Revenue Wz 11,612 22,757
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EIE),HF (7,338) 1,337
Other comprehensive income H 2 mEas 24 4
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(E8), s esE (7,314) 1,341
Included in the above (loss)/profit: AL (EE), BF
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WERREBEIITE
equipment (879) (2,119)
Interest income FE WA 33 163
Interest expense FERE - —
Income tax expense FriS®if = (1,165) (2,386)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in HEAEEREEEE
Wealthy Sound Group ZEm 2Bk
Gross amounts of Wealth Group’s net TEEEEEFRE AT
liabilities (7,962) (648)
Group’s effective interest NEBEBERER B 50% 50%
Group’s share of Wealthy Group’s net AEERELEEE B EFRE
liabilities (3,981) (324)
Amount due from Wealthy Group W EEEERIA 6,028 6,028
Carrying amount in the consolidated e mE 2 REE
financial statements 2,047 5,704
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

17 Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

Merchandise 2K M

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

BEEFEZREE
7 SR

Carrying amount of inventories sold
Write down of inventories

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ##85E#ZKRER QA

17 &8

RAERHIRARAZFE R

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
26,272 13,169
BREAXZFESESITOT :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—2-mF —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,182,109 957,402
174 176
1,182,283 957,578




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

18 Trade and other receivables

BB TTIIR)

18 FEWE 5 IR K H i B W KR

The Group The Company
rEE VNN

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-mFE —FT—=F ZZE-0mFE —T—=F

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET FETT FET

Trade receivables FEUNE 5508 155,574 132,715 - —
Less: allowance for doubtful  Jif - FBEEE

debts (note 18(b)) (Htat 18b)) (694) (562) = —

154,880 132,153 — —

Other receivables Hofth FE YR IR 56,166 37,832 12,249 12,249

Deposits and prepayments R4 NI FE 22,549 24,261 150 164

78,715 62,093 12,399 12,413

233,595 194,246 12,399 12,413

Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments were
rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to approximately
HK$12,558,000 (2013: HK$12,305,000), which are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than
one year. All of the other trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within
one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners and consultants amounting
to approximately HK$49,333,000 (2013: HK$31,602,000),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$13,984,000 (2013: HK$13,493,000) and advances to
staff of approximately HK$2,435,000 (2013: HK$2,514,000).

Included in the Company’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners amounting to approximately
HK$12,240,000 (2013: HK$12,240,000).

FAAEE R RENREBEAESE - A
R R EMiz$4912,558,0008 T(=
T — =4 112,305,000 7T ) © FBERER
B—FRINE R ERARY - FTEEME
W& 5308 & H A FE WK IETEHIR —F R
W el sk iR AR o

ETARNGEE Z KU RIE B m R
R R EER BT 2 FRIE 449,333,000
BL(ZZ— =4 : 31,602,000 7T) (1
Br REREE 413,984,000 (= F—=
% : 13,493,000 7T)) : KM E L&
2 FRIE42,435,0008 (T — = F :
2,514,000 7)) °

SEARR B 2 Bt R IR A (R A B8 26 7%

BB 2 FRIBH) 12,240,000 (=&
— =% : 12,240,000 7T) °
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Ageing analysis

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables

(net of allowance for doubtful debts):

Current

Less than 1 month past due

1 to 2 months past due

More than 2 months but less than 4
months past due

More than 4 months but less than 12
months past due

More than 12 months past due

Amounts past due

BIH]

BEID R 18 A
BHEI1 = 2{@ A
BEA2EAEA
BEIAE 1218 A

BEI12 A L

BT

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days

from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s

credit policy are set out in note 28(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

18 EWEZRENHMEWFIE#)

(@) BRE DT

AT 2R EUWE 5 50R (IR R AR &
1) 2RI DA -

The Group
KEH

2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
148,247 126,200
1,645 2,442
2,207 512
578 721
1,674 1,854
529 424
6,633 5,953
154,880 132,153

JEWE 5 FE— R E AR
30E90REH - REEEFEERKZ
HE— SR BEHRKITE28() °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(i)(i).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

At 1 April
Impairment loss recognised (nhote 5(c))

REA—H

At 31 March

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$694,000 (2013: HK$562,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the
chance of recovery is remote. Consequently, specific
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$694,000 (2013:
HK$562,000) was recognised.

KR=A=+—H

BB TTIIR)

18 EWEZRERHMEWFIE#)

(b)

ERERZBERBR AT S50C)

FE W B 5 SRR E

FEW B 5 58 2 R (8 5 18 T £ P
WARACER - BRIFARBIE MU D%
RIEZ AR MERR - ERZIBRT
BB B E E N AR 5 SR M
(RPEE230)3) °

FR - REEEB(BEER R ARE

BER) 2 BBMT
The Group

REH
2014 2013
—E-lEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
562 502
132 60
694 562

R_ZE—MF=A=+—8 &%
E 2 f& U E 5 5K I8 £694,000 7% T
—F— =4 562,000 T ) 1 &
RETAERE - ZIE R ERE K
FEEBAVR2ZFE@ M
ERETHKE 2 TREERE o
It RERHF BRI 5 694,000 T (=
T—Z4F 1 562,000 7C) DR °

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due

1 to 2 months past due

More than 2 months but less than 4
months past due

More than 4 months but less than 12
months past due

More than 12 months past due

b 488 360 HA % N 4 R (B
BED R 18 A
BEA1E2M@A
wHEI2 =A@ A
wmEIAT 1218 A

BHA12 8 A A L

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

to a number of independent customers that have a

good track record with the Group. Based on past

experience, management believes that no impairment

allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as

there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are considered fully recoverable.
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e MR ERAR MR

W E ZFER EMEWEE #)

(c) YMEEZEKESNE

b 4 A8 51| B2 A 4 A R 3R AR AE T
BB 2 FEUE 5 5RIR 2 fRilk 0 AT an

I
The Group
rEH

2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
148,247 126,200
1,645 2,442
2,207 512
578 721
1,674 1,854
529 424
6,633 5,953
154,880 132,153

I 45 380 5 Ko 3 BB 2 FE WK KIR T
HERWEIPERCELEFE

o

EAHME Y ER(E < B RIR TS &
ZENAEEREEREFERLEL
BURXFAR REBELR A
REEERUEEAES - AER
DR AR 2EEE - WEERER

=8B

%L RERE R E R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

19 Amounts due from/to related parties 19 EW ENBREALFIE
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—F-mE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUIEE IR HE 25 R
interests 6,319 6,300
Amounts due from related companies FEUR B RRE A R FRIE (HT2E)
(note) 3,066 2,978
9,385 9,278
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & {< JE12 B 25 7108 1,511 1,392
Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over Wit - WBARETESYHZSEEHENTE
these related companies. BERTEN -
The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured, FEWSKENREE A TRIBE AEET - 2.8
interest free and repayable on demand. NBIREREE -
20 Bank loans 20 RITER
The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured WITEFEAR—FERNEEZE  TEKEY
by pledge of certain trade receivables amounting to 31,971,000 0( ZF—=% : 12,390,000
approximately HK$31,971,000 (2013: HK$12,390,000) and BIIZETEWESRIE  UERAKREFH
properties owned by certain staff members of the Group. ETEIMBEEZWEEERSR -

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & Z#ZBERA A




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

21 Trade and other payables 21 BENESREREMENRKIE
The Group The Company
rEE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—mOFE —FT—=F ZEBE-NOF —FT—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT FET FET
Trade payables 2 5308 42,364 52,927 — —
Other payables and EMERNTRIER
accrued charges B rER 57,075 45,373 1,550 1,310
99,439 98,300 1,550 1,310
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be Fr B e E 5 5RI8 I HoAth fE - IR TE B S
settled or recognised as income within one year or are R—FRFERERRBASAIRERE
repayable on demand. 2o
Included in trade payables are trade creditors with the AT BREWE 2508 (FIBR REREE ) < IR
following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting BT
period:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—2-mF —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand A1 E A R s E sk I Hf 42,364 52,927
22 Amount due to a director 22 BN—RBESENE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, ENEFREMB L 2 REAEER - ¢
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BREREREE -

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 EZZ=RERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

23 Convertible notes

(a)

(b)

Convertible note issued on 5 November 2010

The Company issued a 2% per annum convertible note
of principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung
Yuk Shan, Shirley, a director of the Company on 5
November 2010. The maturity date of the convertible
note is the second anniversary from the date of issue.
Interest is payable annually in arrears.

The holder of the convertible note has the rights to
convert, on any business day from the date of issue
of the convertible note until 5 business days before
the maturity date, the whole or part only in an integral
multiple of HK$1,000,000 of the principal amount of the
convertible note into ordinary shares of the Company at
a conversion price of HK$0.50. If the note has not been
converted, it will be redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date.

As the convertible note was not converted, the
Company redeemed it on 5 November 2012. The
proceeds on redemption of the convertible note
of HK$20,000,000 and the interest payable of
HK$400,000 were dealt with in the Company’s current
account with Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley. The
Directors considered that the carrying amount of the
convertible note on redemption approximates the fair
value of the amount dealt with in the current account
with Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

Convertible note issued on 20 December 2013

On 20 December 2013, the Company issued a 2%
per annum convertible note of principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley,
a director of the Company and 4% per annum
convertible notes with aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 to several independent third parties,
respectively. The maturity dates of these convertible
notes are the third anniversary from the date of issue.
Interest are payable annually in arrears.

BB TTIIR)

23 AERERRE

(a)

(b)

R-ZE-Z2F+-AERABMTZA
BRRE

ARARZTE—ZEF+—ARBEE
17784 ¥ /520,000,000 7% 7T 2 F 7
K% AI MR EBE T ARAESK
EWMEL - TMRBREEZBHB A
BOBRBRERZMBAFER o F
BIREFEFRIN -

AHRERERAEABERARK
ERETHHAEZINHBEASEE
XEOMEREMNEXERERE
050 B LKA RBREBEASEER
AWM BRSARALEBRER
1,000,000/ T Z T EEE) » HE
EAREEG  AIARFRNEIEA
BOEE -

HARABRBREEREER K
NREIR-_TE——F+—FHAE
ElEF BRARKRER 2 MG
3k 7E20,000,000% 7T & & 5 &
400,000 7T Jh I AN A 7] B ok £ i
BEZERERNER - EFERARN
BRI - AIHRREE 2 REE MR
EMEBETAREANER B
FERE °

R-ZFE-=5+Z-A=-t+tH%TZ
TRRRE

RZZE—=Z%f+-A-+H &
AR DRI A AR REFREME
+ 77 7~ & %8 /320,000,000 % 7T
ZENE2% MR RE - ARA
BEBIE=-THTASEER
30,000,000 7T Z F 7| & 4% 7] #2
BERE - WEATRBREEZ2IHA
REBETEHEFZEZAF - AR
TIRBFEFERIM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # sk R Mz

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

23 Convertible notes (Continued)

(b)

Convertible note issued on 20 December 2013
(Continued)

The holders of the convertible notes have the rights to
convert, on any business day from the date of issue
of the convertible notes until 5 business days before
the maturity date, the whole or part only in an integral
multiple of HK$1,000,000 of the principal amount of the
convertible notes into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.33. If the notes have not
been converted, they will be redeemed by the Company
on the maturity date.

The convertible notes issued have been split as to the
liability and equity components, as follows:

At 1 April KA —H
Principal amount of convertible notes

issued
Issue costs AT
Equity component e &7
Effective interest expense EIRF &R
Interest paid BERFE
Redemption at maturity B B A

Liability component at 31 March

The equity component is presented as convertible
notes reserve within equity. On redemption, the
convertible notes reserve was released directly to
accumulated losses. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 4.47% (2013: 5.41%) per annum.
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BB TTIIR)

23 TR EE#)

(b)

BERTABRBREBZATRE

\ZA=t—BZEEHN

RIE—=F+ZA=Z+RH%TZ
ABRRERE(E)

MR EBEREABENITHRR
ERETANEEZ ARG
M%EHHF'?ZEHM%E&OSS
,%EZE;W BRI MR EES
PEBRBARRNTE @Hx(@ﬁa
1,000,000 7T 2 TEEE &) © W=
BoAREE®R  AARATHENEEA
fE[ -

ERTCARREEES RAER

TR, - FFIEIT ¢
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—F-mE 2o ofF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
— 20,168
50,000 —
(600) —
(1,925) —
47,475 20,168
849 632
— (400))
— (20,400)
48,324 —

B EERAN T RREE R
f#o NEBERE  AJREREEREED
EEBERGEBE aEHHE
BNEABEGFEL4T% (ZE—=4F -
5.41%) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx SHsEBAN - ¥HLABTTIIR)

24 Income tax in the consolidated statement 24 ZEHMBRARAZEAEBH
of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) MEEVHERRRAZHEAHE
financial position represents: ig :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EMSH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FREE N E6(a) 7,766 9,104
— Provisional tax paid — BBEEFH (6,528) (7,553)
1,238 1,551
Represented by: Bl :
Current tax recoverable AT (B BR R R TR = (62)
Current tax payable FET BNERRR 1B 1,238 1,613
1,238 1,551
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx 3B EBASN - HLABTTIIR)

24

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Deferred tax - the Group

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 April 2012
Exchange adjustments
Charged/(credited) to profit or

loss (note 6(a))

At 31 March 2013

At 1 April 2013
Exchange adjustments
Charged/(credited) to profit or

loss (note 6(a))

At 31 March 2014
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Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

LT REMELE ZIEL
B -

R-ZE——FNOA—H
b H R

BRI, (GTAREBR)
(Bt 6(a)

W_ZE—=F=ZA=+—H
N-ZE—=FMAH—H

(& 5 52
BEZME, (G AER)
(K13 6(a)

R-ZE—NF=A=+—H

(b) EEHIE — FAEE

iy TR

fan
==

I
a

3 (&

Depreciation
in excess of

EEHIBRE

24 FEMBRRERAZFAEBH &)

AR SRR R Y EEHIE
BARRENZ BEMT :

the related

depreciation Other
allowances temporary
WEBYE differences

HERE H{th E B Total

& =8 e

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FEIT FET

51 5,642 5,593

(4) 38 34

269 (1,508) (1,234)

316 4,077 4,393

316 4,077 4,393

5 65 70

654 (465) 189

975 3,677 4,652
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24

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(if)

(i)

(c)

Deferred tax — the Group (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2014, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of approximately HK$13,019,000 (2013:
HK$8,433,000).

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2014, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$145,336,000 (2013:
HK$143,336,000) and deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$5,232,000 (2013: HK$2,204,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits, against
which the assets can be utilised, will be available
in relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Of the total
tax losses, approximately HK$28,584,000 (2013:
HK$24,575,000) will expire within 5 years and the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$116,752,000
(2013: HK$118,761,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax — the Company

No deferred tax liabilities have been provided for
in these consolidated financial statements as the
Company does not have any significant temporary
differences.

BB TTIIR)

(b)

(i

(i)

()

24 HZEMBRRERANZFAEBHR &)

FEERIE — AEH(E)

AEREEHARIE -

R-ZE-—ME=ZA=+—0 K&

%] 37 4% kBT B Z 58 49 13,019,000 %

(== — =4 : 8,433,000/ 7r )
RELEFTEEE -

AERELERAEE -

RZZFE—WMF=ZA=+—H ' #HR
EHBENRBRAiZERREETX
AEEBARRERBE RMNATHAE
E WASEIYERRAFHIES
18 #9145,336,000/%8 jL(Z T — =
F 1 148,336,000 7T ) & AT 40 %t
R = B 495,232,0008 T(Z =
— = : 2,204,000/ v ) R Ik
ERIBEE MEBBEES
#928,584,0008 (=T — =4 :
24,575,000 % 7T ) #7485 F R fE i -
i &% T % 18 &5 18 49 116,752,000 %
(= & — = F : 118,761,000
TOMRBRITRES MEWE -

EEBIE — AT
HRARF Y EEMERERE

B MUERGS M BEHETIED
BT IR BB

Annual Report 2013/14 £EH%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B L85 »

25 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and
the eligible employees are each required to make monthly
mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

At 31 March 2014, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid MPF
scheme. At 31 March 2014, the Group’s contributions to
the MPF scheme and the accrued interest thereon exceeded
the potential liabilities should the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
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25 AEMFCEKETE

AEBERBEERIERTESABED B
RIEEBRREGO([ZEH ) RDEE
BERZEERILBHMEATEEF (55
BEEtE]) - RESF B ABRBEIZEA
B2 EREFENREE - RIFBTESF
I AEBETHEARARAERERS
B AR B A E T EERDIE T AT E
ZRREABARZE5% M BIELHRK -
BEHZBRBIERRER BT AEBRA
25,0008 7L (= — =4 /X AA1/4 20,000
ABTT) o AEFEIE L Z HE0NA B RS 5
B Y SE Ak AR A5 By BV By SR B

RZE-—ME=A=+—H xEEET
BEEZERZEIIIA T 2 RERBFH -
¥ ABERNEEFR X ERESRBRS
T AEEEAERIENAZEIEEZ
BRTHEELNR MEEANFZEH
YA BB est8RE - R —0
FZA=1t—0 AEERBESFEF
2 R E 25 B BB RR T A % &
PlfEEzBR e BERE -

AEBRTEZMBRR T RETE 2R
BE2EFEHRICRING S - ZEAEA
TEBRBTREEE ASERTEE
BARPBREME BRI EKREZ
ET A HAERERK - ARREBUT R &
AREEAEETENBAR 2B EBR
RRRERKER ZRRBEHNEE



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3B LA »

26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to
the Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows:
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REBBRAE IR D Z M ER AR -
HRBRM 2T EE(RETEBRER
BNEHEFS2RRE  HXERT
BER()BEOHREHBER(LAREER)
FERERZ P B ¥R R Pl 2 IEAMTE ¢ (i) BX
R EER B AT A E S R B ER R
BmEMBZFHRHE K i) KO®E
BA&SERE) -

(@) RFRFEZERHGRRE G

Options granted to Directors:
— on 10 September 2004
— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to employees:

— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to suppliers/
consultants:
— on 22 February 2012

Total share options
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BN
Contractual life
Number of of options
instruments BREZ
IEZAR EHEH
646,248 9.2 years
2,000,000 5.0 years
2,646,248
10,770,000 5.0 years F
5,880,000 5.0 years
19,296,248
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

Cancelled during the
year

Expired during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

R H ARITIE

RF R

REREH

R R ARTTIE

RERAITTE

T
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEEFE B AR hn#EF 15 B
TEE #H 1B #H

HK$ HK$

B BT
0.8547 19,186,248 0.8536 19,296,248
0.6600 (2,690,000) 0.6600 (110,000)
7.9226 (646,248) N/ATiEF -
0.5995 15,850,000 0.8547 19,186,248
0.5995 15,850,000 0.8547 19,186,248

The options outstanding at 31 March 2014 had an
exercise price in the range of HK$0.4970 to HK$0.6600
(2013: HK$0.4970 to HK$7.9226) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.28 years (2013:

3.14 years).

26 EREERDIARS @)

by BREHE RMNEFHITFEED

R-ZE—ME=ZR=+—HHKIT
RE AR 2 1T 2B N F0.497078
JL £0.660078 L(Z T — = F -
0.49708 L £7.92268 70 )  hniE
FHFBENFHRAR228F(ZF
—ZF 3144F) o
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

Fair value at measurement date RiEAHEIZ AT E
Share price i B 1%
Exercise price 1IE(E

Expected volatility (expressed as T8 HiJ 18 (LA R & E
weighted average volatility used AR 2 iiEF 19K ig
in the modeling under Black HIR)

Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as BT B(A2&HES

weighted average life used R 2 e T35 4 AR
in the modeling under Black 5I7R)
Scholes model)

Expected dividends BETRE

Risk-free interest rate 1 3B Kl &
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(c)

10 September
2004
—TTNE

NATH

HK$0.142 57T
HK$0.60075 7T
HK$0.512 57T

55.79%

9.2 years
3.85%
2.30%

BEREQFERRER

ERED 2 BERECWEURS 2 A
FEDZ2EMRLEREZATE
FHE - IEREBREZ A FEMSE
BEHFRA LG - BREZS
MERRZEA 2B ARIE - 25
BADBRERERTEIEY -

BREAFERRR

Date of grant

REBH
2 March 22 February
2011 2012
—E——F —T——F
=AZH —A=Z+=H
HK$0.58278 7T  HK$0.33187T
HK$0.660%8 7L  HKS$0.490/8 T
HK$0.66087T  HKS$0.497 87T
137.59% 124.71%
5.0 years 5.0 years
Nil 4 Nil &
1.83% 0.63%
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

27 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

BB TTIIR)
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(c)
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NHEJBFTBREATE -

I 8 B BB AR A B 2 TG IR AT
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 27 EX - RBRRE @)
(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) RERBHZBEE)
The Company i NAY=T |

Share-based  Convertible
Share Share payment notes Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve  Other reserve losses equity
& RiER  BOAREE TRRZERE B ZitER ERLE
Note HK8 000 HKS'000 HK8 000 HK8 000 HKS'000 HK8 000 HK8'000
i A T#r 74 i T#r 2 i

At 1 April 2012 H-%--FmA-A 2483 160,072 10,796 1316 - (106,108) 66,958

Changes in equity for 2013, —F-ZE2fREE:
Loss and total comprehensive ~ EREERZEEEREE

loss for the year - - - - - (20,120) (20120
Cancelafion of share options 354 - - 64 - - b4 -
Redemption of convertble EOURREE

notes 2 - - - (1,319) - 1315 -
Issue of writen put option BT EHIE k) - - - - (16,444 - (16,444)
At 31 March 2013 H-%-Z£=f=1-R 2483 160,072 10732 - (16,444) (124,849) 31,994
At 1 April 2013 A-E-ZERE-A 2483 160,072 10732 - (16,444) (124,849) 31,994

Changes in equity for 2014 —E-MEEREE:
Loss and total comprehenshe ~ ERBERZEERLE

loss for the year - - - - - (24.478) (24.478)
Cancelation and expiy of ERETERER

share options - - (2,982) - - 2,982 -
Issue of convertile notes BURREE 2% - - - 1925 - - 1,925
Issue of shares ki 27000 497 21,850 - - - 0T
Share issue expenses POEER 27000 - (529) - - - - (529)
At 31 March 2014 A-E-BEZF=1-R 2,980 181,393 7,750 192 (16,444) (146,345) 31,259
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(i)

Dividend

BB TTIIR)

(b)

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:

HK$NIi).

Share capital

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of FIEEO0.01 57T
HK$0.01 each 2 EER

ZER EBROR

Ordinary shares,

issued and fully BE
paid:

At 1 April REA—H

Issue of share under RIRA S BTG
placement (note(ii) (B a2 i)

At 31 March R=ZA=+—H

e R ERR M R

27 EXR - EERKRE#®)

RE

EFTTEBRNBE-_T—NF
A=t -BLEFEZRE(ZE

—=F  THIL) o
() B=
() ZEREZETRAE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F

Number of Number of

shares shares

BBEE & & B
’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$’000
Fhig FEx FhE FHET
1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
248,294 2,483 248,294 2,483
49,659 497 — _
297,953 2,980 248,294 2,483

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A

ERRFAEAARUBTEEIRZ
BB - AHERFHREORARF
RELEER—FR - FIAEEEBRRAR
AZNBEEZARELAL
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(if)

(d)

(i)

(if)

Share capital (Continued)
Issue of shares

On 28 March 2014, the Company issued 49,658,750
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant to a placing
under generate mandate at a price of HK$0.45 per
ordinary share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$21,818,000 were used as general working capital
of the Group.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of the value of the premiums on their shares
shall be transferred to share premium account. The
application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to shareholders
of the Company out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or the dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be in a position to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
10 November 2003.
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(c)

(ii)

(d)

(M)
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(u).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to the eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q).

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2()).

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group, which
is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is required to
allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
amounted to HK$2,210,000 (2013: HK$1,795,000).

BB TTIIR)
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(d)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

REEERBENE)
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EXFERREMERESIERZ
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B 5

P A7) 1 73R 15k 45 48 AR 1 IS 7 2(0) BL X
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@SR Z BFE ©
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(vi)

(vii)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during the
year (2013: HKSNI).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes,
this appropriation is charged to profit or loss and
included in other payables and accrued charges in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the
fair value of the consideration received and the carrying
amount of the net assets of BUML attributable to the
non-controlling interests and (i) the fair value of gross
liability of written put option issued by the Company
in connection with the disposal of 20% equity interest
in BUML that do not result in a loss of control by the
Group (see note 32).

Distributability of reserves
At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$35,048,000 (2013: HK$35,223,000).
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

U

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans, trade payables,
other payables and accrued charges, amount due to a
director, amounts due to joint ventures, amounts due to
related parties, convertible notes and other long-term
liability, net of cash and cash equivalents and capital,
which comprises all components of equity.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.

BB TTIIR)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign

currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial

risk management policies and practices used by the Group

to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
As such, management considers the aggregate risks
arising from the possibility of credit losses are limited
and to be acceptable.
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BB TTIIR)

28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 £RTAC2REBEER A
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a certain concentration of credit
risk as 24% (2013: 23%) and 58% (2013: 44%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from trade debtors that have not been provided for
other than impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt
as set out in note 18(b).

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2014
comprise mainly advances to business partners and
consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to approximately HK$53,893,000 (2013:
HK$40,400,000). Should the counter parties default
in settling the payments and/or providing services,
the Group may suffer financial losses. However,
the Directors consider that these amounts are fully
recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties
at 31 March 2014 amounting to approximately
HK$9,385,000 (2013: HK$9,278,000), the Group may
suffer financial losses if the related parties default in
settling the payments. However, the Directors consider
that these amounts are fully recoverable.

NRERE D,

(a)

ERABRRERRR(H)

AEBZEERBREFERISEP
ZHEMNFRETE  BRPEEME
ZITERBERBRRREEERR
MBEFE  HRER/) - REMRE
K ARERE SHRIBBET 24%
(ZZE— =% :23%) & 58% (= F
— =5 44%) Th o R R & [ &
AREPRARER WMAEEBEE
TEERBREFRIBER - BRMTFE18(b)
Fr#lw RIERRBEBEIN  BEE
WABHRBEEREKESERS
WAEMEAEIE -

RZZE—ME=A=+—H " K
SECEMERKEZZREMR
XBERHRERMEBEN ZHKE - [
BEIRNsRERESESEH
53,893,000/ (= & — = % :
40,400,000 70) - WX HEF 7
BRI R KRR R
% AIREEAERTPBIELK -
AT EERAZSTHIAENZHK
IE] o

BPR-ZE—WNE=ZA=+—AHZ
JiE Uy B 3 A+ RRIE 499,385,000 78
(= ZF — =4 :9,278,000/% It )
s @ WZEEEATHERIMNR
B BIAEEAEEIMBEL -
AR EERAZEREN2EHW
@ °
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies and stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities which

are based on the contractual undiscounted cash

flows (including interest payments, computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date

the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

The Group

Bank loans

Tradle payables

Other payables and accrued
charges

Amount dlue to a director

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amounts due to related parties

Convertible notes

Other long-term fiabiity

RiTER
VRV
RfoERFRRETER

BB TTIIR)

28 TRITACSRAREERLD

NRERE D,
(b) FBHELEB(E)

THRAFMAEBRARAASREE
REBRBMRZHBTERHIHE - T
RENARMRReRE(BERAS
WM (R FB)IRNERBRZ
BITNERFAREZHNBENT) RAEE
RARRAIREAZ N 2 &F B iR
Bl

(i XEH
2014 2013
Z3-QE 5=

More More
than then
Total Within 2 years Total Witin 2 years
contractual 1 year but less contractual 1 year but less
undiscounted or on than unalscounted oron than
Carrying ~ cash flow demand § years Carrying cash flow demand 5 years
amount  ABEES 15R, 2ENE amowt RERRE 1504, EDNS
BEE RERKAE EEx  E5Ed FEE RESNEE EEk B9
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS 000
7 7 Tén 72 TET i AT T#r
40,291 (40,291) (40,291) - 18,585 (18,585) (16,589) -
42,364 (42,364) (42,364) - 597 (52,927) (52.927) -
57,075 (57,05) (57,075) - 45,373 (45373) (#5373 -
70 (730) 730) = 071 0714 20,714 -
1,89 (1,896) (1,896) - 19 (19 (19) -
151 (1,511) (1511) - 1302 (1,39 (139) -
48,324 (54,800 (1,600) (53,200 - - - -
17,102 20,000) - 20,000 16,444 20,000) - (20,000)
209,293 (218,667)  (145,467) (73,200) 165,454 (159,010) (139,010) 20,000)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(i) The Company

Amounts due to subsiciaries

Other payables and accrued
charges

Amount due to a director

Convertible notes

Other long-term liabity

(c) Interest rate risk

EfHED5
ERENTER
EiER
Ef-2E%5%
TERER
HfbRERE

28 ST ECEREREER D
EE®)

(b) RBEZEME(E)

(i) FRa

2014 2013

Z3-QE 5=
More More
than then
Total Within 2 years Total Within 2 years
contractual 1 year but less contractual 1year Dut less
undiscounted or on than undiscounted oron than
Carrying ~ cash flow demand 5 years Carrying cash flow demand 5 years
amount  AEEEE 1Ry 2ENE ot REBEEE &R 2L
BEE REGHEE EEx  E5ER FAE RESNEE EEk B9
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKkS 000
fn 7 7 7 i 7T a4 i
1998 (1,998) (1,998) - 1,809 (1,809) (1,609) -
1,550 (1,550) (1,550) - 1310 (1,310) (1,310) -
147 (147) (147) - 20,192 W19 @19 -
48,304 (54,800) (1,600) (63,200 - - - -
17,102 (20,000) - (20,000) 16,444 (20,000) - 20,000)
69,121 (78,4%) (5,295) (73,200) 39755 (331 (23311) (20,000)

(c) F=mEk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from

bank deposits, bank loans and convertible notes.

Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate

risk respectively. The Group does not use financial

derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.

The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less

interest-bearing financial liabilities) at the end of the

reporting period.

Variable rate deposits:
Bank deposits and cash
at bank

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank loans
Convertible notes

Variable rate
borrowings:
Bank loans

Total net (borrowings)/
deposits

FEER
(T R R IRTT
Re

EREE :
RITER
AR

\

Jé
i
o
\
s

=
=\
I
hied
L

(fa8),/ BHE
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BB TTIIR)

e R ERR M R

28 TRITACSRAREERLD

NRERE D,

(c) FEmb(AE)

() FEEE

TRAMAEER 2R BREFF
BMOVBITEFRMEERAE)Z

FlxRBE -
The Group
&M
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —ET—=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRRFI=xR BRFIE
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FET FET
0.35% 60,134 0.40% 57,763
6.09% (40,291) 5.88% (12,390)
4.47% (48,324) N/A T F —
(88,615) (12,390)
N/ARiEH — 7.26% (6,195)
(28,481) 39,178
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2014,
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,

it is estimated that a general

with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and decrease/
increase accumulated losses by approximately
HK$451,000 (2013:
profit after tax and decrease/increase the Group’s

increase/decrease the Group’s

accumulated losses by approximately HK$387,000).
Other components of equity would not be affected
(2013: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 20183.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency
risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the

operations to which they relate.
Fair value measurement
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values at 31 March
2014 and 2013.
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29 Commitments

(a)

(b)

BB TTIIR)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 not

provided for in the consolidated financial statements

are as follows:

Authorised and contracted for

— capital injection into a joint venture

— acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

29 7K
(@ HR-ZE—NWE=ZA=+—HEHEM
KRG E T RERIEE 2 EARNRE
mr
The Group
TEE
2014 2013
=ik —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
ERERETL
— M EEELETE 6,000 6,000
— WY - R
B 1,408 4,791
7,408 10,791

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years
After 5 years

1R
1FEB5FR
5% 1%

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties,

display locations and items of equipment under

operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial

period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the

lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments

are usually increased every one to four years to reflect

market rental.
rentals.

None of the leases includes contingent

(b)

R-ZB—WMFE=ZA=+—8 T7
Bz e HEZ ARZERSN
PG I N

The Group
rEE

2014 20183
= L —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
22,149 25,317
29,715 31,600
7,555 11,151
59,419 68,068

AEBERKEHRERTETYE
Emhﬁ& RBIEBE 2 EBEA - H
E-RNFRB—Z1+F AIRE
HEEMAGRBEIEE - He
BEES-ENFEMN ARKRTS
e HEHEEEIAESR -
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30 Contingent liabilities

31

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group and the Company
had no material contingent liabilities.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 28 March 2013, the Company completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Jadepower, which
holds 100% equity interest in &4 (together, “Jadepower
Group”) at a consideration of HK$1 from Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley, a director of the Company. Jadepower Group
is principally engaged in provision of beauty and slimming
services.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising
from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition is as
follows:

e MR ERAR MR

30 HAEME

31

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - R REE
Current assets REBEE

Other receivables H b fE U SR IR
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables H fhpE R 5RIE
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIBFTELE 2BHE
Consideration transferred BEENE

Less: fair value of the net identifiable liabilities
acquired

Goodwill arising on acquisition
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31

32

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The goodwill arising on this acquisition is attributable to the
expected earnings growth of Jadepower Group, and is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

ENRENRE

Cash consideration paid
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Jadepower Group did not contribute any turnover or profit or
loss to the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Had this acquisition been effected on 1 April 2012,
Jadepower Group would have contributed HK$Nil to turnover
and loss of HK$39,000 to result for the year ended 31 March
2013. This pro-forma information is for illustration purposes
and should not be viewed as an indication of the results of
operations that would have occurred if the acquisition had
been completed on 1 April 2012.

Changes of Group’s interest in a subsidiary

On 28 December 2012, the Company, BML and BUML
entered into an investment agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the independent third
party subscribed new shares in BUML, as representing
20% of the enlarged issued share capital of BUML, at
a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. Further details
of this transaction have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2012.
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32 AEERMBEAR 2 EZE B

32 Changes of Group’s interest in a subsidiary

(Continued)

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment
agreement, BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML
which is wholly owned by the Company. Upon the issue
of new shares in BUML on 28 March 2013, the Group’s
effective interest in BUML was reduced from 100% to
80%. This change in Group’s interest in BUML did not
result in a loss of control over BUML and was accounted
for as an equity transaction, whereby adjustments were
made to reflect an increase in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue
of the new shares in BUML.

Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that
BUML fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing
of the shares of an entity holding the business of BUML
on an internationally recognised stock exchange with the
market capitalisation size of such listing of not less than
HK$200,000,000 on or before 28 December 2017, the
independent third party shall have the right, but not an
obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of the
shares of BUML then held by the independent third party
for HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days
from the receipt of the written notice by BUML from the
independent third party to communicate its intent to exercise
the Put Option Right (the “Put Option Notice Period”). If the
Company fails to purchase all of the shares of BUML then
held by the independent third party for HK$20,000,000
within the Put Option Notice Period, then BML and/or the
Company shall be obligated to take up and fulfil BUML’s
obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the
Put Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under
the Put Option Right has been accounted for as a long-
term liability in the consolidated and company statements
of financial position. The effective interest rate of the long-
term liability is 4.00% per annum. During the year ended 31
March 2014, an imputed interest on the long-term liability of
HK$658,000 (2013: HK$NIl) is recognised as finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(%)

BEEEBBBITHRGA - EBRER
BMLZ2EMEB AR - MBMLAZRR A
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TEBABHIRHME A4 3,508,000% T
2 FEHRE e hE 2R 1 00 f2 49 16,492,000 7% 7T
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33 Material related party transactions and
balances

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
Directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
FE HFERIK
STEIH K

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note
5(b)).

Other related party transactions

In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned
in notes 20 and 23 and the acquisition of subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 31, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions during the
year:

Sales of goods to a non-controlling
interest HEEm
Management fee income from a joint

venture

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & ZZRERA A
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BB TTIIR)

33 EXFEAIRZREER

() FEEEBAEME

AEETZERABZME (RIEH
HTABREBEECN TARREFTZR
EEMESHBEEEN TET RS

FREZZE)MAT ¢
2014 2013
—E-NF =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,151 6,659
69 73
6,220 6,732

e Et ATE TRA (R M
5(b)) °

(b) HMHBEALXRS
B B 3£ 20 M 23 P it 2 4 & &2 HE

PAR: B 5 31 PRI ER 2 Wa BE T B8 2 )
Hh e REBRFABETATERXN

KEARERRZEEELA

BEATRS !
The Group
A

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
17,787 10,690
509 2,970
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33 Material related party transactions and 33 EXBEALRZRER @)

balances (Continued)
(b) Other related party transactions (Continued)

Sales of goods to a non-controlling interest were
made at similar terms as the Group grants to other
customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in notes 15, 16, 19
and 22.

(b) HMBEEALRS(E)
A —RIEERERHEERORA
KERTHEMES ZBEMERIEL

ERE AT 2 BEHR B R R
BfsE15 16 ~ 19 R 22 & -

34 Accounting estimates and judgements 34 FEtfhst R FER

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(@) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charge for the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
investments in subsidiaries, interests in joint ventures
and goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair
value less costs of disposal because quoted market
prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of turnover and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover
and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees and other eligible participants
measured by professional valuers and the directors’
estimate based on the Black Scholes model with
modification to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy
of the above estimations could affect the amount of
share-based payment transactions recognised in profit
or loss.
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35 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
which have not been adopted in the consolidated financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities’

HKAS 27 (2011) Amendment

HKAS 32 Amendment Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilties'

HKAS 36 Amendment Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies'

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2010 - 2012
Cycle?

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2011 - 2013
Cycle’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

The Directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

4th Floor

Sands Buliding
17 Hankow Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office in the Cayman Islands

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Nanyang Commercial Bank
Yaumatei Branch

309 Nathan Road

Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia Limited
iISQUARE Branch

Shop UGO01

iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Website
www.sausantong.com
Stock Code

8200
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